- SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SONOMA AGENDA
VALLEY HOSPITAL THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2025
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT REGULAR SESSION 500 PM
Held in Person at
Council Chambers

177 First Street West, Sonoma
and via Zoom Videoconferencing

HEALING HERE AT HOME

To participate via Zoom videoconferencing, use the link below:
https://sonomavalleyhospital-org.zoom.us/j/96421290468?from=addon

Meeting 1D: 964 2129 0468

One tap mobile
+12133388477,,96421290468# US
+16692192599,,96421290468# US

In compliance with the Americans Disabilities Act, if you require
special accommodations to participate in a District meeting, please RECOMMENDATION
contact Whitney Reese, Board Clerk at
wreese@sonomavalleyhospital.org at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting.

MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of everyone in our community.

1. CALL TO ORDER Wendy Lee Myatt Inform

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda. It is recommended that you keep your
comments to three minutes or less. Under State Law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the
Board at this time. For items appearing on the agenda, the public will be invited to make comments at the time the item comes up
for Board consideration.

3. BOARD CHAIR COMMENTS Wendy Lee Myatt Inform
4. CONSENT CALENDAR Wendy Lee Myatt Action Pages
a. BOD Minutes — 10.06.25 3-21

b. Quality Committee Minutes — 08.26.25
¢. Finance Committee Minutes — 09.24.25
d. Policies & Procedures

e. Medical Staff Credentialing

5. CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT D. Paul Amara, MD, FACOG | Inform

6. SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL FOUNDATION UPDATE Leslie Petersen Inform

7. RESOLUTION No. 388: Designation of Admin Responsibility Wendy Lee Myatt Action Page

and Bank Signature Authority 22

8. FY25 AUDIT REPORT Ben Armfield Action Pages
23-104

9. LOC RENEWAL Ben Armfield Action Pages

105 - 109



https://sonomavalleyhospital-org.zoom.us/j/96421290468?from=addon
mailto:wreese@sonomavalleyhospital.

10. CMO REPORT

Patrick I. Okolo 111, MD
MPH

Inform

11. CEO REPORT Ben Armfield Inform Pages
110 - 112
12. FINANCIALS FOR MONTH END SEPTEMBER 2025 Ben Armfield Inform Pages
113-121
13. COMMITTEE UPDATES Board of Directors Action Page
e Quality 2025 Work Plan 122
14. BOARD COMMENTS Wendy Lee Myatt Inform

15. ADJOURN

Wendy Lee Myatt

Note: To view this meeting, you may visit http://sonomatv.org/ or YouTube.com.



http://sonomatv.org/

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REGULAR & SPECIAL MEETINGS

SONOMA MINUTES
VALLEY HOSPITAL MONDAY, OCTOBER 6, 2025

PUNDHAVALLET HEALTE CARE D TRIC] HELD IN PERSON AT 177 FIRST STREET WEST, SONOMA,
HEALING HERE AT HOME AND VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE

SONOMA VALLEY HOSPITAL BOARD MEMBERS
1. Wendy Lee Myatt, Chair, Present
2. Denise M. Kalos, 1st Vice Chair, Present
3. Daniel Kittleson, DDS, 2nd Vice Chair, Present
4. Dennis B. Bloch, Secretary, Present
5. Ed Case, Treasurer, Present

MISSION STATEMENT
The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve and restore the health of everyone in our community.

1. CALL TO ORDER Wendy Lee Myatt

Meeting called to order at 5:03pm.
2. PUBLIC COMMENT Wendy Lee Myatt None
3. BOARD CHAIR COMMENTS Wendy Lee Myatt

Lee Myatt highlighted the hospital’s community engagement efforts, including the Active Aging and Wellness Series at Vintage
House and the upcoming Golden Harvest Senior Resource and Wellness Fair. She also announced the grand opening of the
expanded Physical Therapy space on October 16, noting the project was completed on time and on budget. A closed session was
held on Friday, October 3, 2025, regarding CEO selection.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR Wendy Lee Myatt Action

a. BOD Minutes — 09.04.25 MOTION: with accepted addition to the new

b. Quality Committee Minutes — 08.27.25 policy, motion by Case to approve, 2" by Kalos.
c. Policies & Procedures All in favor.

d. Medical Staff Credentialing

Case noted that the new policy “Interacting with Immigrations & Customs Enforcement Officers (ICE) (1) should be for
patients, visitors, and employees

5. COMMUNITY OUTREACH & MARKETING ANNUAL | Dawn Castelli, Community Inform
REPORT Outreach & Marketing Manager

Castelli provided a marketing and outreach update, noting continued momentum building on last year’s branding efforts.
Highlights included recent community engagement programs, including Active Aging and Golden Harvest, strong participation
growth, and examples of outreach through print, digital media, and radio. Castelli reported meaningful growth in wound care
volumes and described targeted outreach strategies for the 3T MRI, including provider-focused marketing and geofencing
campaigns, which have contributed to increased referrals. UCSF referrals continue to grow and ongoing collaboration is
expanding data access and reporting.

6. RESOLUTION No. 387: Designation of Admin Ben Armfield Action
Responsibility and Bank Signature Authority

MOTION: to accept, AYE votes: 5, NAY votes: 0

7. CEO REPORT Ben Armfield Inform

Armfield welcomed new CMO Dr. Patrick Okolo (with thanks to Dr. Cusick for interim coverage) and reported strong August
results. Continued positive financial performance to start the fiscal year and strong volumes, particularly in the emergency
department. The hospital’s recent national stroke quality recognition was noted and approval of the expanded line of credit.
Armfield provided brief updates on seismic planning and ongoing capital projects, noting progress toward final approvals and
cost-efficient completion strategies.
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8. FINANCIALS FOR MONTH END AUGUST 2025 Ben Armfield Inform

Armfield reiterated strong year-to-date financial and volume performance, noting revenue above budget and continued strength in
imaging and emergency services. MRI volumes dipped in August due to staffing but rebounded in September, and SVH remains
optimistic about fiscal performance as the hospital advances key funding and capital priorities. Armfield also confirmed analysis
is still underway regarding potential Saturday MRI operations and noted an open tech position remains unfilled.

9. COMMITTEE UPDATES Board of Directors Inform
e Finance Committee update * Ed Case

Case reported all updates were covered.

10. BOARD COMMENTS Board of Directors None

Director Kalos reported meeting the new CEOQ of the Sonoma Valley Community Health Center and noted her interest in
strengthening collaboration with the hospital.

11. ADJOURN Wendy Lee Myatt

Regular session adjourned at 6:07 p.m.
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souoh
VALLEY HOSPITAL

HEALING HERE AT HOME

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
QUALITY COMMITTEE
Wednesday, September 24, 2025, 5:00 PM

MINUTES

Members Present Excused/Not Present Public/Staff — Via Zoom
Daniel Kittleson, DDS Susan Kornblatt Idell Jessica Winkler, DNP, RN, NEA-BC, CCRN-K, SVH CNO
Michael Mainardi, MD Wendy Lee Myatt Whitney Reese, SVH Board Clerk
Howard Eisenstark, MD Kathy Beebe, RN PhD Leslie Petersen, SVH Foundation ED
Carl Speizer, MD Troy Ashford, MJ, BS, R.T.(R) (MR), SVH Director of
Carol Snyder Diagnostics Services

Alex Rainow, MD, SVH Vice COS

Dave Chambers, public

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS Daniel Kittleson, DDS

Kittleson called meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. October’s committee meeting has been moved from 10/22 to 10/29

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION Daniel Kittleson, DDS

No public comments

3. CONSENT CALENDAR Daniel Kittleson, DDS ACTION

Minutes 08.27.25 Motion to approve by Mainardi 2" by Snyder. All in favor.
4. IMAGING QA/PI Troy Ashford, MJ, BS, R.T.(R) (MR) INFORM

Ashford presented the Imaging Department’s performance and safety report for August 2024 through July 2025, highlighting strong results and
corrective improvements. There were no MRI accidents or near misses, and CT scans for stroke patients were done much faster than the target
time. The mammography recall rate was 8.2%, which is within national standards, and earlier data issues have been fixed. An issue with CT
radiation settings was corrected (no patients were harmed) and new policies were put in place to prevent changing the settings again. Repeat
scans and contrast issues stayed low, and supply checks showed good compliance. Ashford recommended retiring the old 1.5T MRI machine
since it’s costly to maintain and rarely used.
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5. QUALITY INDICATOR PERFORMANCE & PLAN Jessica Winkler, DNP, RN, NEA-BC, CCRN INFORM

Winkler presented the July 2025 metrics. The CIHQ corrective action plan noted continuous observation for patients at risk of self-harm,
confirming 100% compliance in the Emergency Department. Physicians are now fully aware of the new requirement for a written order to
initiate suicide precautions, and Epic documentation workflows have been standardized since early implementation issues were identified.
Winkler reported strong performance across the Quality Scorecard, including no hospital-acquired infections, hand hygiene compliance near
90%, and zero blood culture contaminations in August. The ED achieved all stroke and sepsis care targets, including 100% compliance on
sepsis bundles, while readmission and mortality rates remained within benchmarks. Overall, SVH’s clinical quality outcomes remain strong,
with continued focus on maintaining compliance momentum and closing the policy review backlog.

5. POLICIES & PROCEDURES Jessica Winkler, DNP, RN, NEA-BC, CCRN INFORM

Winkler presented one policy change. Committee reviewed.

6. CLOSED SESSION: Alex Rainow, MD ACTION

a. Calif. Health & Safety Code 832155: Medical Staff Credentialing & Peer
Review Report

Motion to approve by Mainardi 2" by Snyder. All in favor.

7. ADJOURN Daniel Kittleson, DDS INFORM

Meeting adjourned at 6:05 p.m.
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VALLEY HOSPITAL

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

HEALING HERE AT HOME

SVHCD FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING

MINUTES

TUESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2025
In Person at Sonoma Valley Hospital
347 Andrieux Street
and Via Zoom Teleconference

Present Not Present/Excused Staff/Public
Dennis Bloch Ed Case Ben Armfield, SVH Interim CEO & SVH CFO, in person
Paul Chakmak, in person Robert Crane Lois Fruzynski, SVH Accounting Manager, in person

Andrew Exner, in person
Graham Smith, via zoom
Catherine Donahue, via zoom

Alexis Alexandridis, MD MBA FACS, in person

Whitney Reese, SVH Board Clerk, in person

Dawn Kuwahara, RN BSN, SVH Chief Ancillary Officer, in person
Wendy Lee Myatt, in person

Lynn McKissock, SVH Chief HR Officer, via zoom

Lisa Stone, SVH Revenue Cycle Manager, via zoom

Katherine Djiauw, via zoom

Chris Pritchard, via zoom

MISSION & VISION STATEMENT

The mission of SVHCD is to maintain, improve, and restore the health of everyone in our community.

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION

ACTIONS

1. CALL TO ORDER/ANNOUNCEMENTS

Dennis Bloch

Meeting called to order 5:00pm

Bloch opened the meeting, as committee chair in Case’s absence.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT SECTION

None

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

Dennis Bloch

Action

Finance Committee Minutes 7.27.25

MOTION: Motion to approve by Chakmak,
2" by Smith. All in favor.

4. AUDIT PROGRESS REVIEW

Katherine Djiauw & Chris Pritchard, Baker Tilly

Inform

Audit Director Catherine Dijauw and Partner Chris Pritchard from Baker Tilly (formerly Moss Adams) provided an update on the District’s FY2025 financial
audit, noting that interim fieldwork was completed in June/July and final fieldwork is underway, with a focus on liquidity, revenue and reimbursement, and debt
compliance. Zhao reported no material weaknesses, significant deficiencies, or audit adjustments identified to date and confirmed that the audit is on schedule for
completion by mid-October, with draft financials to be shared about a week before the October Finance and Audit Committee meeting.

5. RES 386: SETTING GO BOND RATE

Ben Armfield

Action

MOTION: Motion to keep current tax rate
($18.50 per $100,000 of assessed value) by
Chakmak, 2" by Exner. All in favor.
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Armfield reviewed the District’s GO Bonds, originally issued at $35 million with approximately $18 million outstanding and $6 million held in reserve from
property-tax collections. The Committee discussed the current tax rate of $18.50 per $100,000 of assessed value. As the current tax rate is unchanged from last
year, staff will verify with the County and legal counsel whether a formal Board resolution is required annually or if Finance & Audit Committee action is
sufficient.

6. DEBT PROFILE REVIEW Ben Armfield Inform

Armfield reported that over the past two fiscal years, the hospital has intentionally restructured its debt portfolio, retiring legacy obligations and refinancing high-
interest balances into more sustainable arrangements. The former $5 million Union/US Bank line of credit was resolved in 2024 through a combination of the
CHFFA Distressed Hospital Program Loan and a new Summit State Bank term loan, reducing cash strain and strengthening banking stability. The hospital’s
active debt now includes a $5.5 million Summit State Bank line of credit, the Summit term loan, low- or no-interest CHFFA loans that support EMR
implementation and legacy debt repayment, and general obligation bonds funded by property taxes. Overall leverage remains moderate and improving, with a
37% debt-to-capitalization ratio and a 1.42x Debt Service Coverage Ratio, and all financial covenants are being met.

7. 1IGT UPDATE Ben Armfield Inform

The Committee discussed the hospital’s strategy for funding its upcoming $10.5 million IGT payment, which would yield a $12 million net benefit. Armfield
shared that SVH was tentatively approved for increasing the hospital’s line of credit from $5.5 million to around $10.5-11 million. Committee members expressed
alignment on maintaining a compliant, transparent, and well-documented process. The formation of an ad hoc IGT Review Committee was suggested to review
last year’s IGT agreement and consult with both hospital counsel and the District Hospital Leadership Forum to confirm all program parameters.

6. FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR MONTH END Ben Armfield Inform
JULY 2025

Armfield reported a strong start to the fiscal year, with July posting an operating EBITDA of about $500Kk, driven by record-high volumes across imaging and
emergency services. Gross charges reached $33 million, the highest in hospital history. MRI, CT, and ultrasound volumes all hit new peaks, with referrals
expanding beyond Sonoma. The committee discussed revised accounting treatment for IGT accruals and requested an analysis of blended margins to understand
returns on additional volume. Construction is complete for the new PT space pending OSHPD approval, and the ICU is now fully operational.

7. ADJOURN Dennis Bloch Inform

Meeting adjourned at 6:46pm
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Document Tasks By Committee
Listing of currently pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped by committee.

Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

|Rep0rt Parameters

Filtered by: Document Set: - All Available Document Sets -
Committee: 09 BOD-Board of Directors
Include Current Tasks: Yes
Include Upcoming Tasks: No

Grouped by: Committee

Sorted by: Document Title

|Report Statistics

Total Documents: 49

Committee: 09 BOD-Board of Directors

Committee Members: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Reese, Whitney (wreese), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Document Task/Status
Accountability Pending Approval

Food & Nutrition Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  No changes needed

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Finn, Bridget (bfinn)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Admission to the Hospital from the ED Pending Approval
Emergency Dept

Pending Since Days Pending

10/7/2025 24

10/31/2025 0

Summary Of Changes: ~ wrote purpose statement; added CMS language about pt PCP and/or family notification; updated language to reflect things
documented in EHR and not on paper (such as pt belongings list, etc.) Also added timeframe goals to admit pt, and special
considerations for the geriatric population (this is in line with the AFHS. Updated references. authors and reviews

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Ehret, Marylou (mehret)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 02 MS-Medicine Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Admission-Discharge Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
SCU (Surgical Care Unit Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Updated references:
Added Nurse-to-Patient Ratios

Included ASPAN-recommended ratios: Phase I: 1:1 initially, progressing to 1:2. Phase IlI: 1:3 or 1:2 for unaccompanied
children or higher-acuity patients.

Added language regarding respect for patient rights, and support for family presence, as supported by ASPAN’s ethical care
guidelines

New language encouraging ongoing quality improvement, clinical inquiry, and the use of evidence-based interventions in
the SCU.

Page 1 of 13 HospitalPORTAL
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)

Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM
Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

ALARA (As Low As Reasonably Achievable) Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Diagnostic Services Dept Policies
Summary Of Changes:  Added : CTDI Alert Management:

Ensure timely reporting and management of CTDI (Computed Tomography Dose Index) alerts to maintain patient safety and
compliance with radiation safety standards.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Ashford, Troy (tashford)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Asbestos (Medical Surveillance) HR8610-164.8 Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)\Employee Health

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed by Employee Health Nurse and Chief Ancillary Officer.
Added language to policy statement that HR is responsible "in collaboration with Employee Health Nurse and Occupational
Health"
Updated Initial Medical Exam procedure and frequency of chest roentgenogram per OSHA/NIOSH guidelines.
Updated Annual Medical Exam procedure based on OSHA/NIOSH updated guidelines.
Changed "physician/physician assistant" with "Healthcare Provider" throughout.
Updated employee education requirements to include risk factors of medical surveillance and employee rights under OSHA,
as well as proper use of personal protective equipment when working with asbestos.
Updated references.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Certification of Technologists Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

Diagnostic Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Troy Ashford made the changes; No technologist shall be permitted to perform any MRI procedure unless certified by the
American Registry of Radiologic Technologists (ARRT) as a Radiologic Technologist, holds ARRT board certification in MRI, or
has obtained a degree in MRI Technology (MRIT).

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Ashford, Troy (tashford)
Approvers: Kuwahara, Dawn (dkuwahara) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-

Board of Directors - (Committee)

Classification of Employees Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Code of Ethics Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

Patient Rights Policies (PR)

Page 2 of 13 HospitalPORTAL
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Ramos, Carmen (cramos)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Contrast Extravasation Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Diagnostic Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Ashford, Troy (tashford)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Credit Card Use in Cafe Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Food & Nutrition Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Removed need for signature for purchases over $15, updated references

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Finn, Bridget (bfinn)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Delegation of Responsibilities, Clinical Lab Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

Laboratory Services Policies (LB)

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Veal, Laurie (lveal)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Discharge Medication Charity Program Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

Discharge Planning (DP)

Summary Of Changes:  Clarified that program is managed by case management and nursing supervisor (after hours). Added Adobe Drugs as the
pharmacy participating in the program and included details regarding expense account, contact information, and use
electronic prescriptions.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: Kutza, Chris (ckutza), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Disclosure of Adverse Events or Unanticipated Outcomes Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

Patient Rights Policies (PR)

Summary Of Changes:  Updated Risk Manager to Director of Quality, Risk Management and Patient Safety

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Dress Code, Central Sterile Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

SCU (Surgical Care Unit Dept

Page 3 of 13 HospitalPORTAL
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

Summary Of Changes:  Recommending changing department to surgery/OR department as policy is for surgical suite not just central sterile.
Title change to Dress Code, Surgical Services
OLD: Dress Code, Central Sterile
Updated purpose statement to reflect purpose of the policy instead of purpose of surgical attire.
Changed from Sonoma Valley Health Care District to Sonoma Valley Hospital.
Added reference to semi-restricted area as appropriate.
Changed verbiage from hair cover to head cover to be consistent with AORN wording.

Added recommendation for fluid-resistant shoe covers to meet AORN regulatory requirement.

Updated reference.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board

of Directors - (Committee)

Electrosurgical Units Safety Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Updated references;
Added statement regarding smoke-evacuation "(vapor-capture) device must be used during all procedures generating

surgical plume. The evacuation system should be positioned close to the surgical site and activated whenever the ESU is in
use". per AORN recommendation

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Emergency Department Staffing Plan Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24
Emergency Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Added purpose statement. Updated staffing plan to reflect current RN shifts. Added references for CIHQ standards and
CDPH specific regulation for staffing.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Ehret, Marylou (mehret)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Fluoroscan Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Surgical Services/OR Dept
Summary Of Changes:  Updated references:
Removed claims that aprons aren't needed. (now recommended for fluoscan per AORN)
Inserted standard radiation protection advice per AORN: lead aprons, thyroid, eyewear, and dosimetry
Added dosimetry badge monitoring and annual radiation safety training.
Emphasized ALARA principles: pulsed mode, collimation, last-image hold

Clarified positioning of image intensifier and tube to minimize scatter

Page 4 of 13 HospitalPORTAL
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)

Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM
Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Gowning and Gloving Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Updated reference
Added following statement per AORN recommendation:

"If glove contamination occurs and the gown sleeve edge is also compromised, the scrub person must remove both the
gown and gloves before re-gowning and gloving."

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Hepatitis B Vaccination Program Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)\Employee Health

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed by Employee Health Nurse and Chief Ancillary Officer.
Updated all references of Infection Prevention Nurse to Employee Health Nurse.
Content of policy was updated in compliance with California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (Cal/OSHA), the
California Department of Public Health (CDPH), and Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) guidelines
throughout.
Added the statement "SVH follows universal precautions, ensuring that all blood and other potentially infectious materials
are treated as potentially infectious, in accordance with Cal/OSHAs Bloodborne Pathogens Standards."
Revised language regarding individuals who do not respond after a total of six doses of vaccine - they are considered non-
responders, counseled on safe work practices, and referred to their primary care provider.
Added that all documentation must be kept on file for the duration of employment plus 30 years.
Updated reference.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Infection Control in Surgical Services Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Surgical Services/OR Dept
Summary Of Changes:  Updated references.

Added statement per AORN recommendations; The perioperative department will implement transmission-based
precautions in response to emerging infectious diseases, in coordination with hospital-wide EID plans

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Latex Allergy Precautions Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Policy Modernization for Latex-Free Environment:
Updated the policy to reflect that no latex-containing products are present in the operating room.

Emphasized a facility-wide latex-safe environment, rather than preparing only per patient need.
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM
Risk Identification Clarification:

Retained patient history assessment but noted that universal latex precautions apply regardless of case order or operating
room.

Removed outdated practice of scheduling latex cases first or terminally cleaning an OR specifically for latex cases.
Streamlined Precautions:

Removed redundant steps that are no longer applicable in a latex-free facility (e.g., covering cushions, head covers without
elastic).

Retained best practices such as allergy band identification, documentation, and communication with anesthesia, pharmacy,
and PACU.

Standardization and Responsibility Clarity:

Clarified roles for nurses, anesthesia, and pharmacy in ensuring latex-safe care.

Reinforced the importance of verifying latex-free alternatives and continued vigilance for patients with severe allergies.
Updated Terminology and Guidelines:

Integrated current AORN 2025 and ASPAN 2023-2025 recommendations.

Replaced older language with modern, patient-centered phrasing (e.g., "latex-safe" vs. "latex-free zone").

Reference Section Modernized:

Added up-to-date references in APA format from AORN, AAMI, and ASPAN.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Loaner Instrument Trays from Outside the Facility Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Expanded Purpose Statement

Clarified the intent to ensure standardized, regulatory-compliant processes for receiving and reprocessing loaner trays, with
a focus on patient safety.

New Sections Added:
Scope — Defined which departments and personnel the policy applies to (SPD, OR, vendors).
Definitions — Added key terminology (e.g., Loaner Trays, IFU, ANSI/AAMI ST79) to promote clarity and compliance.

Policy Statement — Clearly stated non-acceptance of pre-sterilized trays and requirements for processing all instruments
according to IFUs.

Responsibilities — Outlined expectations for vendors, SPD staff, and OR personnel, creating accountability for proper tray
handling and documentation.

Enhanced Procedure Section:

Broke down each stage into subsections:
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)

Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

Receiving & Inspection

Decontamination

Inspection & Assembly

Sterilization

Storage & Distribution

Aligned each step with current AAMI ST79 and AORN standards.
Required photo documentation for missing/damaged instruments.
Emphasized traceability with sterilization and patient info labeling.
New Documentation Requirements:

Specified logs and records to be maintained, including:

Tray delivery date/time

IFU verification

Cleaning/sterilization parameters

CI/BI results Defined initials

Patient/case traceability

Late Delivery Protocol:

Introduced a non-conformance section requiring documentation and potential rejection of trays delivered less than 48
hours prior to use.

Quality Assurance Measures:
annual competency checks, and vendor compliance monitoring to ensure consistent adherence.
Updated References:

Replaced outdated 2012 references with current 2023-2025 AORN, AAMI ST79,and CMS, in ADA format.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-
Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Maintenance of Pharmacy Equipment Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Pharmacy Dept

Summary Of Changes:  -Added "For incubators without specific manufacturers' specifications, cleaning shall take place at least every 30 days and
calibration shall take place at least every 12 months." to comply with updated regulation
-Added attachment "Incubator Cleaning Log"

Moderators: Kutza, Chris (ckutza), Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Kutza, Chris (ckutza)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital
Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

Management of (employee) Exposures to Blood and Body Fluids Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)\Employee Health

Summary Of Changes: Reviewed/updated collaboratively by Director of Quality/Risk, Chief HR Officer, Chief Ancillary Officer, Infection
Prevention/Employee Health Nurse, and Nurse Manager/Education Coordinator.
Information was added regarding safe work practices, standard precautions, and proper use of sharps disposal.
Added specific prevention measures associated with sharps/needles.
Updated procedures and requirements to be followed/met in the event of a blood and/or body fluid exposure.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Modified Work Program Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)\Employee Health

Summary Of Changes: ~ Minor changes to some wording for clarity.
Added References.
Removed Employee Health Nurse as Reviewer (not involved in this process)

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Nutrition and Wound Healing Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Food & Nutrition Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Removed Vitamin A from recommended supplementation for wound healing to align with current clinical standards,
included that registered dietitian will review wound report each shift to identify patients requiring nutritional assessment.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Finn, Bridget (bfinn)
Approvers: Drummond, Kimberly (kdrummond) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 02 MS-Medicine Department - (Committee) -> 05

MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors -
(Committee)

On Call, Surgery Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Changed any reference to nurse manager to director. Updated references to ADA format

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Paging Codes Overhead Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

Emergency Code Alerts Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed & revised: Name change to "Hospital Overhead Announcement Protocol for Emergency Codes" . Removed section
listing different codes and policy numbers as it is not necessary and is outdated. Updated reference to 2025 CIHQ standards.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Ehret, Marylou (mehret)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Pain Management Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Targeted Quality & Safety Initiatives Policies (QS)
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

Summary Of Changes:  Added purpose statement. Added various pain scales that align with what EPIC has. Clarified assessment and
documentation requirements per standards of care, Added definition of mild, moderate, severe pain; Added section on non-
pharmacological pain management; added special considerations for the geriatric population (by Becky Spear) and cultural
considerations. Reviewed and approved by Drs Cusick (7/15/2025) and Walther (7/25/2025)

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Taylor, Jane (jtaylor)
Approvers: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 02 MS-Medicine Department - (Committee) -> 03 MS-

Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee)
-> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Pathology Handling Cultures and Specimens Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Changed MSDS to Updated name Safety Data Sheets (SDS) OR to operating room. Fixed some grammatical errors. Changed
wording to refer to electronic medical record.

Added reference to Laboratory policy on Specimen handing, AORN, & CMS
Updated reference section

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Patient Admitting and Registration Responsibilities Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24
Patient Rights Policies (PR)

Summary Of Changes:  Changed from 120 to 180 days, removed the last sentence.
Reviewed and approved with Lisa Stone 06/12/2025
Grammatical and spelling errors corrected. DK 6.12.25

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: Ramos, Carmen (cramos)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Patient Positioning Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Surgical Services/OR Dept
Summary Of Changes:  Updated references.

Added statement regarding surgeon involvement in positioning per AORN recommendation: Surgeon collaboration: The
surgeon must be present for positioning involving specialty tables, fracture tables, or when positioning affects access to the
surgical site. For all other procedures, the surgeon must confirm and communicate the required position with the team prior
to final patient positioning.

Added statement regarding documentation per AORN recommendation: Documentation: Patient positioning must be
documented in the intraoperative record, including position, protective measures used, staff present, and assessment of
skin integrity.

Added Statement regarding staff training and competency per AORN recommendation: 8. Staff Training and Competency: All
perioperative nursing staff must complete initial and annual competency training on patient positioning in alignment with
AORN Guidelines. Staff must be trained and validated before independently positioning patients.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

Patient Safety in the Operating Room Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  References and ownership updated

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Patient's Own Medication Procedure Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Pharmacy Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes

Moderators: Kutza, Chris (ckutza), Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Kutza, Chris (ckutza)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 04 MS-Performance Improvement/Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Portable Fluoroscopy Usage Policy and Procedure Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Diagnostic Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Ashford, Troy (tashford)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Preparation of Methotrexate IM Doses Using ChemoClave System Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Proceﬂ#&?macy Dept\Compounding Related

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes

Moderators: Kutza, Chris (ckutza), Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Kutza, Chris (ckutza)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 04 MS-Performance Improvement/Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Radiation Protection for Patients Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Diagnostic Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Ashford, Troy (tashford)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Radiography in the Surgical Suite Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Diagnostic Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)
Lead Authors: Ashford, Troy (tashford)
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital
Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)
Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-
Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Radiologist Availability Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Diagnostic Services Dept Policies

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Ashford, Troy (tashford)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Registered Dietitian Nourishment Modifications 8340-173 Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Food & Nutrition Services Dept Policies
Summary Of Changes:  Removed that MD may order "Nourishment per RD" (Paragon batch order, no longer applicable in Epic), removed that

preferences are entered into "likes/dislikes" section of patient tray card as new tray card system does not utilize
"likes/dislikes" Modified to indicate that oral supplements may only be discontinued per MD order

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Finn, Bridget (bfinn)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 02 MS-Medicine Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-

Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

RETIRE: COVID-19 Monoclonal Antibody Therapy Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Medication Management Policies (MM)

Summary Of Changes:  Recommend retiring this policy. It spoke to processes pertinent to when COVID lockdown measures were in place.

Moderators: Kutza, Chris (ckutza), Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Kutza, Chris (ckutza)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 04 MS-Performance Improvement/Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

RETIRE: Name Badges Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)

Summary Of Changes:  Retire - duplicate of policy in Care of the Physical Environment, "Personnel Identification"

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Scheduling Surgical Procedures Pending Approval 10/17/2025 14

Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes: ~ Made formatting and grammar corrections throughout the policy and updated terminology—changed "Manager" to
"Director" to align with our current leadership structure.
Clarified the block scheduling and utilization sections, including expectations for block release times, scheduling beyond
allocated time, and voluntary transfers. | also defined utilization thresholds more clearly and outlined the probation process
for underused block time. (current verbiage was contradictory) The cancellation workflow now includes notifying SCU and
Sterile Processing. | refined the urgent and emergent surgery guidelines to strengthen communication and escalation
protocols.
Updated the references to reflect the most current ASA and AORN guidelines.
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)

Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM
Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)
Approvers: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler) -> 01 P&P Committee - (Committee) -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Service Recognition Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)

Summary Of Changes:  Changed wording from "Recognition Luncheon" to "Recognition Event"
Changed language referring to a "formal gift program" to simply "recognition gift"
Updated the date used to calculate service to "Latest Date of Hire" or "Adjusted Service Date"
Removed language disqualifying Per Diem employees for the recognition event (not the current practice)
Removed the section on Social Functions as it relates to termination of service. Recognition upon termination is included in
the Separation of Employment policy.
No applicable references (not governed by law or regulation)

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Standby, Call-back, Call-in and Call-off Pay Pending Approval 10/7/2025 24

Human Resources Policies (HR)

Summary Of Changes:  Update to Attachment A only - adding position in Patient Access to Standby schedule.

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Lead Authors: McKissock, Lynn (Imckissock)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Sterile Compounding Procedures Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Pharmacy Dept\Compounding Related

Summary Of Changes:  Reviewed, no changes

Moderators: Kutza, Chris (ckutza), Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Kutza, Chris (ckutza)
Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 04 MS-Performance Improvement/Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Surge Planning-Pharmacy Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Emergency Preparedness Policies (EP)

Summary Of Changes:  Updated with additional 503b outsourced compounding companies: Prodigy/Leiters, US Compounding
Updated with additional direct vendor accounts: FFF Enterprises, KeySource

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)
Lead Authors: Kutza, Chris (ckutza)
Approvers: 01 P&P Commiittee -> 04 MS-Performance Improvement/Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee - (Committee) -> 05 MS-

Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Tourniquet Use of the Pneumatic Tourniquet in the Operating Room  Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0
Surgical Services/OR Dept

Summary Of Changes:  Updated reference
Expanded contraindications to include severe crush injuries, local infections, or unstable fractures, as per AORN

Updated statement regarding tourniquet inflation time per AORN guidelines: “Tourniquet inflation time should be limited to
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Document Tasks by Committee Sonoma Valley Hospital

Run by: Reese, Whitney (wreese)

Listing of currentlv pending and/or upcoming document tasks grouped bv committee. Run date: 10/31/2025 4:08 PM

the minimum duration necessary for the surgical procedure.

Recommended maximum inflation times are 60 minutes for upper extremities and 90 to 120 minutes for lower extremities,
unless otherwise directed by the surgeon.

If extended use is anticipated, a deflation period of at least 10-15 minutes should be provided to allow for tissue
reperfusion before reinflation.

Prolonged inflation times beyond recommended limits may increase the risk of nerve injury, muscle ischemia, and
postoperative complications.

The surgical team should monitor inflation duration closely and document any deviations from standard guidelines."

Moderators: Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (lwyatt)

Lead Authors: Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Cornell, Kelli (kcornell)

Approvers: 01 P&P Committee -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-
Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)

Transporting Monitored Patients Pending Approval 10/31/2025 0

Patient Care Policy

Summary Of Changes:

Moderators:
Lead Authors:

Approvers:

Page 13 of 13

Added purpose statement. Clarified that a physician order is required to remove pt from tele for transport only; added
statement that RN must document safety precautions taken for transport, etc..Added reviewers to include MD directors of
ED and Inpt

Newman, Cindi (cnewman), Wyatt, Louise (Ilwyatt)

Winkler, Jessica (jwinkler), Taylor, Jane (jtaylor)

01 P&P Committee -> 02 MS-Medicine Department - (Committee) -> 03 MS-Surgery Department - (Committee) -> 05 MS-
Medical Executive - (Committee) -> 07 BOD-Quality (P&P Review) - (Committee) -> 09 BOD-Board of Directors - (Committee)
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SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESOLUTION NO. 388

DESIGNATION OF ADMINISTRATIVE RESPONSIBILITY
AND BANK SIGNATURE AUTHORITY

We, the Board of Directors of the Sonoma Valley Health Care District (SVHCD), hereby
resolve to delegate to the Sonoma Valley Hospital (SVH) Chief Executive Officer, Kelley
Kaiser, and to SVHCD Board Director, Wendy Lee Myatt, the authority to represent the District
Board and the authority to execute or accept licensing citations and grant applications and related
documents in connection with Sonoma Valley Hospital. In addition, we hereby resolve to grant
bank signature authority to SVH Chief Executive Officer, Kelley Kaiser, SVH Chief Financial
Officer, Ben Armfield, and to SVHCD Board Director, Wendy Lee Myatt. All prior authorized
signatures are hereby revoked.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 6" day of November, 2025, at Sonoma, California.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
Wendy Lee Myatt, Chair
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
ATTEST:

Dennis B. Bloch, Secretary
SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
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@ pakertilly

Sonoma Valley Health

Care District

2025 Audit Results

Discussion with Management and
the Audit Committee

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are separate
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Scope of Services

Significant Risks Identified

Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Statements of Net Position
Operations

Other Information

Your Service Team
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Scope of Services

We have performed the following services for Sonoma Valley Health Care District:

Annual financial statement audit for the « Assisted in drafting the financial
year ending June 30, 2025 statements and related footnotes as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2025.
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Significant Risks ldentified

During the planning of the audit, we have identified the following significant risks:

Valuation of patient - Tie out of reserving schedules
accounts receivable - Zero Balance Accounts (ZBA) analysis

- Lookback analysis and subsequent collections analysis
Patient revenue - Hospital patient revenue analysis and cut-off analysis
recognition - Journal entry testing focusing on revenue reversal
Management override - Inquiries of accounting and operational personnel
of controls - Perform risk assessment procedure

- Test of design and operational effectiveness of financial reporting controls
- Testing of risk-based manual journal entry selections

Debt covenant - Recalculate debt covenant ratios
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Our responsibility with regard to the
financial statement audit under U.S.
auditing standards:

We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion
about whether the financial statements that have been
prepared by management, with your oversight, are prepared,
in all material respects, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our audit of the financial statements does not
relieve you or management of your responsibilities.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Our responsibility with regard to the
financial statement audit under U.S.
auditing standards:

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAS), and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2
Section 1131.2, State Controller’'s Minimum Audit
Requirements for California Special Districts. As part of an
audit conducted in accordance with the standards, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Our responsibility with regard to the
financial statement audit under U.S.
auditing standards:

Our audit of the financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control
or to identify deficiencies in the design or operation of internal
control. Accordingly, we considered the District’s internal
control solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide assurance concerning such
internal control.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Our responsibility with regard to the
financial statement audit under U.S.
auditing standards:

We are also responsible for communicating significant
matters related to the financial statement audit that are, in
our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in
overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are
not required to design procedures for the purpose of
identifying other matters to communicate to you.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Significant Accounting Practices:

Our views about qualitative aspects of
the District’s significant accounting
practices, including accounting policies,
accounting estimates, and financial
statement disclosures

Management is responsible for the selection and use of
appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by the District are described in Note 2 to the
financial statements. During the year ended June 30, 2025,
the District adopted Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences
and Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures. No other
new accounting policies were adopted and there were no
changes in the application of existing policies during the year.
We noted no transactions entered into by the District during
the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. There are no significant transactions that have
been recognized in the financial statements in a different
period than when the transaction occurred.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Significant Unusual Transactions:

No significant unusual transactions were identified
during our audit of the District’s financial statements.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

No significant difficulties were encountered during our
audit of the District’s financial statements.

Significant Difficulties Encountered
During the Audit:

We are to inform those charged with
governance of any significant difficulties
encountered in performing the audit.
Examples of difficulties may include
significant delays by management, an
unreasonably brief time to complete the
audit, unreasonable management
restrictions encountered by the auditor or
an unexpected extensive effort required
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Disagreements With Management:

Disagreements with management,
whether or not satisfactorily resolved,
about matters that individually or in the
aggregate could be significant to the
District’s financial statements, or the
auditor’s report.

There were no disagreements with management.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Circumstances that affect the form
and content of the auditor's report:

There were no circumstances that affected the form
and content of the auditor’s report.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Other findings or issues arising from
the audit that are, in the auditor’s
professional judgment, significant

and relevant to those charged with
governance regarding their oversight
of the financial reporting process:

There were no other findings or issues arising from the
audit to report.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Uncorrected misstatements, or matters underlying
those uncorrected misstatements, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2025, could potentially cause
future-period financial statements to be materially
misstated, even though we have concluded that the
uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the
financial statements, including disclosures, under audit.

Uncorrected Misstatements:
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Material, Corrected Misstatements:

Material, corrected misstatements that
were brought to the attention of
management as a result of audit
procedures.

No material misstatements were identified as a result
of our audit.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Management’s Consultation with
Other Accountants:

When we are aware that management
has consulted with other accountants
about significant auditing or accounting
matters, we discuss with those charged

with governance our views about the
matters that were the subject of such
consultation.

We are not aware of instances where management
consulted with other accountants about significant
auditing or accounting matters.
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Matters Required to be Communicated with
Those Charged with Governance

Significant issues arising from the
audit that were discussed, or the
subject of correspondence with

management:

No significant issues arose during the audit that have
not been addressed elsewhere in this presentation.
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Assets (in thousands

60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000
) Cash and cash Patient accounts Capital assets, net Right-of-use assets Other assets Investments restricted
equivalents receivable and subscription for debt service
assets
m 2025 4,386 6,259 57,486 4,368 2,749 5,987
2024 3,749 7,506 3,374 5,957
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Liabilities and Net Position (in

thousands)

45,000

40,000

35,000

30,000

25,000

20,000

15,000

10,000

5,000

m2025
2024

Accounts ay &
accrued liabilities
8,054

7,859

Other current
liabilities
3,192
7,822

Operating lease and Bonds and notes
subscription liabilities payable
3,942 24,088

4,888 /hcD BOD Nov. 2025 p%.%sszo

Other long term
liabilities
1,027
945

Net position

40,932
38,778
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Net Patient Service Accounts

Receivable

$8,000 -
$7,500 -
$7,000
$6,500 -
$6,000 -
$5,500 |

$5,000 -

Dollars (in thousands)

$7,506

2025

2024

% Net Revenues

16.0%

14.0% 1

12.0% -

9 7%

10.0% -
8.0% 1
6.0% 1
4.0%

2.0% A
0.0% -
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Operations




Income Statements Year to Year

Comparison

Total Operating Revenue (in thousands)

June 30, 2025
$64,531

22%

1%
3%

53% 2%

10%

9%

June 30, 2024
$56,018

m Salaries, Wages, and
Benefits

m Professional Fees and
Purchased Services 14%

m Supplies

= Facilities and Equipment 1%
3%
1%

m Utilities

H [nsurance
9%
Depreciation and 56%
Amortization
Inter-Governmental
Transfer (IGT) expense
m Other Expenses

6%

Deficit
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Other
information




Days in Net Accounts Receivable

44 39

50
40
30
20

10

2023 2024 2025 Comp Group
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Debt to Capitalization

50%
45%
40%
35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

5%

0%

e

46%

42%
37%

24%

2023 2024 2025 Comp Group
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Communications with Those Charged with Governance

To the Board of Directors
Sonoma Valley Health Care District

We have audited the financial statements of Sonoma Valley Health Care District (the District) as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our report thereon dated , 2025,
Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States
of America

As stated in our engagement letter dated February 3, 2025, we are responsible for forming and
expressing an opinion about whether the financial statements that have been prepared by
management, with your oversight, are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (U.S. GAAS), and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2 Section 1131.2, State
Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. As part of an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sonoma Valley Health Care District’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we considered Sonoma Valley Health Care
District’s internal control solely for the purposes of determining our audit procedures and not to
provide assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the financial statement audit
that, in our professional judgment, are relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial
reporting process. However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying
other matters to communicate to you.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you
in our engagement letter dated February 3, 2025.
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Significant Audit Findings and Issues
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Sonoma Valley Health Care District are described in Note 2 to
the financial statements. During the year ended June 30, 2025, the District adopted Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences and Statement
No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures. No other new accounting policies were adopted and there were no
changes in the application of existing policies during the year. We noted no transactions entered into
by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There
are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statements in a different
period than when the transaction occurred.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial
statements were:

e Management’s estimate of net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services rendered,
including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with
third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period
the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are
determined. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimated
net realizable amounts. We found management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

e Management’s estimate of the provision for uncollectible accounts is recognized based on
management’s estimate of amounts that ultimately may be uncollectible. The District provides
care to patients without requiring collateral or other security. Patient charges not covered by
a third-party payor are billed directly to the patient if it is determined that the patient has the
ability to pay. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the provision
for uncollectible accounts. We found management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

e Management’s estimated liability for workers’ compensation claims is recognized based on
management’s estimate of historical claims experience and known activity subsequent to
year end. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the actuarial
estimates of uninsured losses for professional liabilities and workers’ compensation. We
found management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

¢ Management’s estimates of useful lives of capital assets are based on the intended use and
are within accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We
found management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.
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e Management’s estimates of the discount rate, useful lives, lease terms related to the District's
operating lease right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. We have gained an understanding of
management’s key factors and assumptions and examined the documentation supporting the
estimates. We found management’s basis to be reasonable in relation to the District’s
financial statements taken as a whole.

e Management’s estimates of the discount rate, subscription terms, and other assumptions
related to the District’s subscription assets and subscription liabilities. We have gained an
understanding of management’s key factors and assumptions and examined the
documentation supporting the estimates. We found management’s basis to be reasonable in
relation to the District’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Actual results could differ from these estimates. In accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the Unites States of America, any change in these estimates is reflected in the financial
statements in the year of change.

Financial Statement Disclosures

The disclosures in the financial statements are consistent, clear, and understandable. Certain
financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were disclosures
relating to significant concentration of net patient service revenue, capital assets, bonds and notes
payable, operating leases, subscription-based IT arrangements, and line of credit.

Significant Unusual Transactions

We encountered no significant unusual transactions during our audit of the District’s financial
statements.

Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

Professional standards require us to inform you of any significant difficulties encountered in
performing the audit. No significant difficulties were encountered during our audit of the District’s
financial statements.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that
could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose
during the course of our audit.

Circumstances that Affect the Form and Content of the Auditor’s Report

There may be circumstances in which we would consider it necessary to include additional
information in the auditor’s report in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS) and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2 Section 1131.2,
State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. There were no
circumstances that affected the form and content of the auditor’s report.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all factual and judgmental misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no uncorrected financial statement misstatements whose effects, as
determined by management, are material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated , 2025.

Management Consultation with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all
the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Significant Audit Findings or Issues

We are required to communicate to you other findings or issues arising from the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, significant and relevant to your oversight of the financial reporting process.
There were no such items identified.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the
Sonoma Valley Health Care District, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

[Signature]

San Francisco, California
, 2025
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

Introduction

This management's discussion and analysis of the financial performance of Sonoma Valley Health Care
District (the District) provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the years ended June 30,
2025 and 2024. The District operates Sonoma Valley Hospital (the Hospital) located in Sonoma,
California. Management's discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
financial statements and notes to financial statements of the District.

Financial highlights

e The District's total net position increased in 2025 by approximately $2,155,000 or 6% and
increased in 2024 by approximately $2,730,000 or 8%.

e Cash and cash equivalents increased by approximately $638,000 or 17% and decreased in 2024
by approximately $2,574,000 or 41%. The increase in 2025 was driven primarily by the receipt of
increased supplemental funding through the renegotiated Rate Range Intergovernmental Transfer
(IGT) Program, as well as stronger patient volumes and improved cash collections. The decrease
in 2024 was primarily due to the loss of the Hospital’s busiest surgeon during the year, repayments
of two zero-interest bridge loans from California Health Facilities Finance Authority (CHFFA)
totaling over $700,000, as well as incremental cash outlay to complete the Hospital’'s new
electronic medical record (EMR).

¢ Net patient accounts receivable decreased in 2025 by approximately $1,247,000 or 17% and
decreased in 2024 by approximately $337,000 or 4%. The decrease in 2025 reflects continued
improvement in billing and collection processes, supported by another full year of operational
experience with the Epic electronic health record system. Enhanced workflows, greater staff
proficiency, and timelier follow-up contributed to stronger cash collections and lower outstanding
receivables. The decrease in 2024 is attributable to increased volumes offset by increased write
offs compared to the prior year.

e The District reported operating losses in both 2025 ($8,849,000) and 2024 ($9,612,000). The
operating loss in 2025 decreased by approximately $763,000 or 8% from the operating loss
reported in 2024. The decrease in operating loss in 2025 reflects meaningful progress toward
financial stabilization and sustainability. The improvement was driven by a combination of
operational efficiencies, strong outpatient volume growth—particularly in imaging, emergency, and
therapy services—and the positive financial impact of increased supplemental funding through the
renegotiated Rate Range IGT Program. These factors collectively strengthened the Hospital's
margin performance and contributed to improved cash flow and liquidity compared to the prior year.

Operational Changes and Future Plans

Fiscal year 2025 marked a significant turnaround for Sonoma Valley Hospital and the Sonoma Valley
Health Care District. Coming off a turbulent fiscal year 2024 that was defined by transitions and the
departure of key senior physicians, the District entered fiscal year 2025 with a focused strategy to restore
stability and strengthen operational performance. The fiscal year 2025 budget established an ambitious
goal—targeting an improvement of more than $1 million in operating performance— and the District
successfully delivered on that plan.

1
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

Despite the ongoing challenges facing small community hospitals across California, fiscal year 2025
proved to be a year of meaningful progress and recovery. The Hospital experienced broad-based volume
growth, particularly within outpatient services, where diagnostic imaging and emergency medicine led the
way. These service lines achieved record utilization levels, underscoring the community’s continued trust
in the Hospital’s ability to deliver timely and high-quality care close to home.

The District also saw stabilization and recovery within surgical services following the prior year’s loss of its
most active orthopedic surgeon. A new local orthopedist was successfully recruited and began providing
clinical services in Sonoma in August 2024, which helped rebuild surgical and imaging volumes
associated with orthopedic care.

Progress continued on the District’s multi-year Outpatient Diagnostic Center (ODC) expansion project—a
more than $20 million capital initiative designed to modernize and consolidate the Hospital’s diagnostic
imaging capabilities. During fiscal year 2025, the CT phase of the project was fully completed, driving a
20% increase in CT volumes year-over-year. The final phase of the ODC project— the permanent
installation of the Hospital’'s new 3-Tesla MRI magnet—remained underway throughout the year. While
the permanent structure is still pending final occupancy approvals (anticipated for the middle of fiscal year
2026), the Hospital was successful in operationalizing a temporary MRI facility, allowing the new
technology to be deployed ahead of schedule. This interim solution enabled a 30% increase in MRI
volumes compared to the prior year.

Construction also neared completion on the Physical Therapy expansion project, which will double the
current footprint dedicated to outpatient rehabilitation services. As of June 2025, construction was more
than 95% complete, with full occupancy anticipated by the end of calendar year 2025. The District also
completed a targeted upgrade of the Hospital's Intensive Care Unit (ICU), enhancing the functionality and
patient experience within the Hospital’s critical care environment.

From a financial standpoint, the District achieved notable success through its continued participation in
state supplemental funding programs. In particular, the Voluntary Rate Range IGT Program provided a
substantial boost to Hospital revenues. Historically, the District has received approximately $3 million in
net funding annually through this program. During 2025, the District secured an increase that resulted in
$7 million in net supplemental funding, representing a critical infusion of support. This additional funding
served as a major catalyst in offsetting rising operational costs, generating positive cash flow from
operations, and improving the Hospital’s overall cash position by approximately $3 million compared to
2024.

Looking ahead, the District continues to focus on strengthening its strategic affiliation with UCSF Health
(UCSF) to enhance clinical quality, expand specialty access, and ensure long-term sustainability. The
Joint Operating Committee—comprising senior leadership from both Sonoma Valley Hospital and
UCSF—continued to identify and develop opportunities to grow key service lines and recruit new
physician specialists to the Sonoma Valley market. Over the past year, the affiliation has facilitated the
recruitment of new physicians and senior leadership positions, including a new Chief Medical Officer, who
begins in October 2025. The District and UCSF are also collaborating closely on the recruitment of a
permanent Chief Executive Officer, further solidifying the foundation for sustained operational and
strategic success.

2
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

Using this annual report

The District's financial statements consist of three statements—statement of net position, a statement of
revenues, expenses and change in net position, and a statement of cash flows. These statements provide
information about the activities of the District, including resources held by the District but restricted for
specific purposes by creditors, contributors, grantors, or enabling legislation. The District is accounted for
as a business-type activity and presents its financial statements using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

The statements of net position and statements of revenues, expenses, and change in net position

The statements of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and change in net position
report information about the District’s resources and its activities. One of the most important questions
asked about the District's finances is, "Is the District as a whole, better or worse off as a result of the
year's activities?" The statements of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and change in
net position report information about the District's resources and its activities in a way that helps answer
this question. These statements include all restricted and unrestricted assets and all liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes thereto. The District's net position—
the difference between assets and liabilities—is one way to measure the District's financial health or
financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net position is one indicator of
whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other nonfinancial factors, such as changes in
the District's patient base and measures of the quality of service it provides to the community, should be
considered, as well as local economic factors.

The statements of cash flows

The final required statement is the statements of cash flows. The statements report cash receipts, cash
payments and net changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from four defined types of activities. It
provides answers to questions such as where did cash come from, what was cash used for and what was
the change in cash and cash equivalents during the reporting period.

The District's net position
The District's net position is the difference between its assets and liabilities reported in the statement of

net position. The District's net position increased by approximately $2,155,000, or 6% in 2025 from 2024
and increased by approximately $2,730,000, or 8% in 2024 from 2023, as shown in Table 2.

3
SVHCD BOD Nov. 2025 pg.62



Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

Table 1: Statements of Net Position

2025 2024 2023
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,386,324 $ 3,748,581 $ 6,322,741
Investments restricted for debt service, current portion 2,787,862 2,663,610 2,563,218
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $1,329,024, $4,353,661, and $1,806,659 in 2025, 2024,
and 2023, respectively 6,258,623 7,505,623 7,842,950
Estimated third-party payor settlements - - 61,347
Property tax receivable 339,681 303,260 179,983
Other receivables 702,223 1,520,491 1,663,396
Inventories 934,239 913,408 978,625
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 772,603 637,493 1,160,940
Total current assets 16,181,555 17,292,466 20,773,200
Capital assets, net
Nondepreciable 10,706,944 6,394,562 8,567,864
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 46,779,598 49,855,214 43,402,253
Total capital assets, net 57,486,542 56,249,776 51,970,117
Operating right-of-use assets, net 1,248,112 1,498,904 1,033,640
Subscription assets, net 3,119,953 4,744,851 4,827,627
Investments restricted for debt service, net of current portion 3,198,809 3,293,726 3,210,971
Total noncurrent assets 65,053,416 65,787,257 61,042,355
Total assets $ 81,234,971 $ 83,079,723 $ 81,815,555

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 8,053,929 $ 7,859,449 $ 7,249,685
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 2,972,749 2,703,820 2,406,779
Estimated third-party payor settlements 219,231 144,884 -
Line of credit - 4,973,734 4,973,734
Bonds payable, current portion 2,561,000 2,406,000 2,277,000
Notes payable, current portion 1,027,037 1,142,589 992,688
Other current liabilities - - 85,976
Operating lease obligations, current portion 263,791 286,518 372,131
Subscription liability, current portion 994,461 1,030,797 1,536,345

Total current liabilities 16,092,198 20,547,791 19,894,338

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Accrued workers' compensation liability 1,027,000 945,000 1,079,260
Bonds payable, net of current portion 15,486,000 18,047,000 20,453,000
Notes payable, net of current portion 5,013,439 1,224,003 2,366,484
Operating lease obligations, net of current position 1,124,599 1,213,244 692,446
Subscription liability, net of current portion 1,559,433 2,325,128 1,282,029

Total long-term liabilities 24,210,471 23,754,375 25,873,219

Total liabilities 40,302,669 44,302,166 45,767,557

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 33,399,066 28,456,450 20,821,235
Restricted for debt service 5,986,671 5,957,336 5,774,189
Unrestricted 1,546,565 4,363,771 9,452,574

Total net position 40,932,302 38,777,557 36,047,998

Total liabilities and net position $ 81,234,971 $ 83,079,723 $ 81,815,555
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

Receivables

As discussed previously, net patient accounts receivable decreased in 2025 by approximately $1,247,000
or 17% which is primarily due to more timely collections on accounts receivable. Property tax receivable
increased by approximately $36,000 or 12% from 2024 and by approximately $123,000 or 68% in 2024
from 2023. Other receivables decreased in 2025 by $818,000 or 54% from 2024 due to the receipt of the
Cyber-attack insurance payout. Other receivables decreased in 2024 by $143,000 or 9% from 2023.

Capital assets

At the end of 2025 and 2024, the District had approximately $57,487,000 and $56,250,000, respectively,
invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as detailed in Note 8 to the financial
statements.

Debt

On June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District had approximately $24,087,000 and $22,820,000, respectively,
in bonds, equipment notes payable and notes payable outstanding as detailed in Note 12 to the financial
statements. The District has a new line-of-credit agreement with Summit State Bank for an amount not to
exceed $5,500,000. The line-of-credit balance from June 30, 2024, was paid off with a loan from the
Distressed Hospital Loan Program of $3,100,000 and a Summit State Bank three-year term loan of
$1,974,000. The District had unused credit on the line of $5,500,000 as of June 30, 2025, and $526,266
as of June 30, 2024.
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

Table 2: Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

In 2025, the District's operating loss decreased by $763,000 or 8% from 2024. In 2024 the operating loss
increased by $1,013,000 or 12% from 2023, as shown in Table 2 below:

2025 2024 2023
OPERATING REVENUES
Net patient service revenue $ 64,269,631 $ 55,773,479 $ 54,185,879
Capitation revenue 261,251 244,147 202,502
64,530,882 56,017,626 54,388,381
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 27,731,827 25,142,587 24,777,605
Employee benefits 6,433,458 6,153,443 5,859,077
Purchased services 4,624,763 4,750,529 5,222,623
Professional fees, medical 7,688,127 7,487,831 6,938,546
Professional fees, non medical 2,263,247 2,059,989 1,960,260
Supplies 8,074,630 7,693,639 7,882,605
Facilities and equipment 402,697 407,419 358,744
Utilities 1,992,821 1,945,774 1,813,069
Insurance 1,049,308 819,515 658,491
Depreciation and amortization 6,166,625 5,267,168 4,550,776
Inter-Governmental Transfer (IGT) expense 5,897,969 3,097,493 2,271,852
Other expenses 1,054,502 804,230 693,936
Total operating expenses 73,379,974 65,629,617 62,987,584
Loss from operations (8,849,092) (9,611,991) (8,599,203)
Nonoperating income (expenses)
General obligation bond tax assessment revenues 2,774,378 2,928,571 2,628,829
Parcel tax assessment revenues 3,735,688 3,702,140 3,776,123
General obligation bond interest (461,276) (521,562) (578,627)
Interest expense (396,208) (710,443) (519,385)
Investment income 337,184 305,860 171,954
Other income, net 1,293,390 1,119,314 1,250,587
Total nonoperating income (expenses), net 7,283,156 6,823,880 6,729,481
Capital contributions 3,720,681 5,517,670 2,937,472
Changes in net position 2,154,745 2,729,559 1,067,750
Net position, beginning of year 38,777,557 36,047,998 34,980,248
Net position, end of year $ 40,932,302 $ 38,777,557 $ 36,047,998

*The District's net patient revenue is comprised of comprehensive services that span the continuum of
healthcare services: inpatient and outpatient hospital patient care services and emergency room services.
Net patient service revenue represents payments made by government programs, insurance companies,
and patients and is not the gross billed charges.
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

The following chart shows the percentage of government programs (Medicare, Medicare HMO, Medi-Cal,
and Medi-Cal Managed Care), commercial insurance, and other net patient revenue. Government
programs generally do not cover the cost of providing patient care services and, therefore, are
augmented by commercial insurance payments. The District's payor mix is the reason that the parcel tax
is so critical to the ongoing operations of the District.

Payor mix - Percentage of total cash collections

Over the period, the District has continued to experience the shift from inpatient to outpatient care. The
District's experience with this shift in patient care services is consistent across all hospitals in the United
States. Insurance companies, including Medicare, the District's largest payor, are more frequently
requiring services to be provided in the outpatient setting.

2025 2024 2023

Medicare 19.7% 23.6% 23.4%
Medicare HMO 11.3% 10.0% 10.7%
Medi-Cal 0.4% 1.4% 1.4%
Medi-Cal Managed Care 30.6% 19.5% 20.2%
Commercial Insurance 32.8% 36.6% 34.5%
Workers Compensation 1.8% 21% 3.1%
Capitated 0.7% 1.0% 0.8%
Self-pay/Other 0.4% 2.3% 21%
Other Government 2.3% 3.5% 3.8%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Operating losses

The first component of the overall change in the District's net position is its operating income or loss;
generally, the difference between net patient services and other operating revenues and the expenses
incurred to perform those services. In each of the past three years, the District has reported an operating
loss. This is consistent with the District's operating history as the District was formed and operates
primarily to serve residents of Sonoma Valley, regardless of their ability to pay. The District levies
property taxes to provide sufficient resources to enable the facility to serve lower income and other
residents.

In 2025 the District's operating loss decreased by $763,000, or 8% from 2024. In 2024 the operating loss
increased by $1,013,000, or 12% from 2023. The major components of those changes in operating loss
are:

e Total operating revenues increased by $8,513,000, or 15% in 2025, compared to 2024. Total
operating revenues increased by $1,629,000, or 3% in 2024. The increase in 2025 is due primarily
to a 16% increase in gross emergency revenue, and by a substantial increase in supplemental
funding received through the Voluntary Rate Range IGT Program. The IGT program delivered
$7 million in net funding in fiscal year 2025, compared to approximately $3 million in the prior year.

>
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

Salaries and wages and benefits increased in 2025 by $2,869,000, or 9% compared to 2024, and
increased in 2024 by $659,000, or 2% compared to 2023. Salaries, wages, and benefits increased
during 2025 in clinical departments related to a continued increase in patient volumes, particularly
in outpatient departments, including surgery, emergency services, imaging, and physical therapy.

Purchased services decreased in 2025 by $126,000, or 3% compared to 2024, and decreased in
2024 by $472,000, or 9% compared to 2023. The decrease in 2025 was primarily driven by the
absence of one-time clinical and technical training costs related to the Hospital’s Epic electronic
health record system, which were incurred early in fiscal year 2024 to support system optimization
and staff proficiency. Purchased services decrease in 2024 is due to a reduction in various
third-party expenses related to IT as well as a reduction in EMR training costs that were incurred
during 2023.

Medical professional fees increased in 2025 by $200,000, or 3% from 2024 due to incremental
costs related to the renegotiation of various physician service agreements during the year. Medical
professional fees increased in 2024 by $549,000 or 8% from 2023 due to renegotiation of various
physician service agreements during the year.

Nonmedical professional fees increased in 2025 by $203,000, or 10% from 2024, and increased by
$100,000, or 5% 2024 from 2023. The increase in 2025 primarily reflects the full-time staffing of
key senior management positions within the District, along with additional consulting costs incurred
in connection with the renegotiation of the Hospital’s Rate Range IGT Program. The increase in
2024 is due to the filling of some senior management positions that had been vacant for portions of
the prior year.

Supplies increased in 2025 by $381,000, or 5% from 2024. The primary driver in this increase is
the continued growth in patient volumes. Supplies decreased in 2024 by $189,000, or 2% from
2023, due to a reduction in surgical implant costs associated with the departure of the Hospital's
key orthopedic surgeon in March of 2024.

Facilities and equipment decreased in 2025 by $5,000, or 1% over 2024. Facilities and equipment
increased in 2024 by $49,000, or 14% from 2023, due to an increase in general facilities repair and
maintenance expenses throughout the Hospital.

Depreciation and amortization increased in 2025 by $899,000, or 17% from 2024, and increased in
2024 by $716,000, or 16% from 2023. The increases in the two years are primarily attributable to
the placement into service of major components of the ODC project, specifically the CT and MRI
phases, which significantly expanded the Hospital’s diagnostic imaging capacity.

Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) expense increased in 2025 by $2,800,000, or 90% compared to
2024, and increased in 2024 by $826,000, or 36% compared to 2023. The increase in 2025 reflects
the corresponding rise in IGT program activity and payout levels, consistent with the Hospital’s
expanded participation in the program and the higher supplemental funding received during the
year.
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Years Ended June 30, 2025, 2024, and 2023

e Other expenses increased in 2025 by $527,000, or 15% compared to 2024, primarily due to higher
recruiting and advertising costs associated with ongoing physician and leadership recruitment
efforts. Other expenses increased in 2024 by $404,000, or 13% compared to 2023, driven mainly
by increased advertising expenditures and higher freight and shipping costs.

Nonoperating revenues and expenses

Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist primarily of general obligation bond tax assessment
revenues, parcel taxes levied by the District, investment income, interest expense, and noncapital grants
and gifts.

General obligation bond tax assessment revenues decreased in 2025 by $154,000, or 5% compared to
2024, and increased in 2024 over 2023 by $300,000, or 11%. General obligation bond revenue
decreased in fiscal year 2025 compared to 2024, primarily due to the continued reduction in the GO Bond
tax rate. The District has maintained a lower assessment level as excess trustee funds remain available,
reducing the need to levy higher property tax rates to meet annual debt service requirements. In contrast,
GO Bond revenue increased in fiscal year 2024 compared to 2023 is a result of a year-end adjustment to
recognize additional interest income earned on bond funds held in trust during that period. Parcel taxes
increased in 2025 by $34,000, or 1% compared to 2024. Parcel taxes decreased in 2024 by $74,000, or
2% compared to 2023. General obligation bond and other interest expense decreased by $375,000, or
30% compared to 2024. This decrease was primarily the result of restructuring the District’s line of credit
balance at the end of 2024 into a fixed-rate term loan under the Distressed Hospital Loan Program, which
reduced exposure to variable interest rates. In contrast, interest expense increased by $134,000, or 12%
in 2024 compared to 2023, primarily due to a full year of interest payments on a CHFFA Help Il Loan that
was executed during the 4th quarter of 2023.

Capital grants and gifts

The District received gifts from Sonoma Valley Hospital Foundation and various individuals for the
construction costs related to the ODC and to purchase capital assets in the amount $3,721,000 in 2025
and $5,518,000 in 2024; a decrease of $1,797,000 in 2025 and an increase of $2,580,000 in 2024
compared to 2023.

The District's cash flows

Changes in the District's cash flows are consistent with changes in operating losses and nonoperating
revenues and expenses, as discussed earlier.

Contacting the District's financial management

This financial report is designed to provide our patients, suppliers, taxpayers, and creditors with a general
overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives.
Questions about this report and requests for additional financial information should be directed to the
Chief Financial Officer by telephoning (707) 935-5003.
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
Sonoma Valley Health Care District

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sonoma Valley Health Care District, which comprise the
statements of net position as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Sonoma Valley Health Care District as of June 30, 2025 and 2024,
and the respective changes in financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS), and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131.2, State
Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Sonoma Valley Health Care
District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Sonoma Valley
Health Care District’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year beyond the financial
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly
thereafter.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
the California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 1131.2, State Controller's Minimum Audit
Requirements for California Special Districts will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there
is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and the California Code of Regulations, Title 2,
Section 1131.2, State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts, we

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Sonoma Valley Health Care District’s internal control. Accordingly,
no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Sonoma Valley Health Care District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 1 through 9 be presented to supplement the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of
the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise Sonoma Valley Health Care District's financial statements. The accompanying
supplemental schedule of community support on pages 41 and 42 has not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

San Francisco, California
, 2025
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2025 and 2024

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments restricted for debt service, current portion

Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible
accounts of $1,329,024 and $4,353,661 in 2025 and 2024,
respectively

Property tax receivable

Other receivables

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Capital assets, net

Nondepreciable

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization
Total capital assets, net

Operating right-of-use assets, net

Subscription assets, net

Investments restricted for debt service, net of current portion

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

See accompanying notes.

2025 2024
$ 4,386,324 $ 3,748,581
2,787,862 2,663,610
6,258,623 7,505,623
339,681 303,260
702,223 1,520,491
934,239 913,408
772,603 637,493
16,181,555 17,292,466
10,706,944 6,394,562
46,779,598 49,855,214
57,486,542 56,249,776
1,248,112 1,498,904
3,119,953 4,744,851
3,198,809 3,293,726
65,053,416 65,787,257
$ 81,234,971 $ 83,079,723
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Statements of Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Estimated third-party payor settlements liability
Line of credit
Bonds payable, current portion
Notes payable, current portion
Operating lease obligations, current portion
Subscription liabilities, current portion

Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities
Accrued workers' compensation liability
Bonds payable, net of current portion
Notes payable, net of current portion
Operating lease obligations, net of current position
Subscription liabilities, net of current position

Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Investments restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes.

2025 2024
8,053,929 $ 7,859,449
2,972,749 2,703,820
219,231 144,884
- 4,973,734
2,561,000 2,406,000
1,027,037 1,142,589
263,791 286,518
994,461 1,030,797
16,092,198 20,547,791
1,027,000 945,000
15,486,000 18,047,000
5,013,439 1,224,003
1,124,599 1,213,244
1,559,433 2,325,128
24,210,471 23,754,375
40,302,669 44,302,166
33,399,066 28,456,450
5,986,671 5,957,336
1,546,565 4,363,771
40,932,302 38,777,557
$ 81,234,971 $ 83,079,723
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024
OPERATING REVENUES
Net patient service revenue $ 64,269,631 $ 55,773,479
Capitation revenue 261,251 244,147
Total operating revenues 64,530,882 56,017,626
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 27,731,827 25,142,587
Employee benefits 6,433,458 6,153,443
Purchased services 4,624,763 4,750,529
Professional fees, medical 7,688,127 7,487,831
Professional fees, non medical 2,263,247 2,059,989
Supplies 8,074,630 7,693,639
Facilities and equipment 402,697 407,419
Utilities 1,992,821 1,945,774
Insurance 1,049,308 819,515
Depreciation and amortization 6,166,625 5,267,168
Inter-Governmental Transfer (IGT) expense 5,897,969 3,097,493
Other expenses 1,054,502 804,230
Total operating expenses 73,379,974 65,629,617
Loss from operations (8,849,092) (9,611,991)
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSES)
General obligation bond tax assessment revenues 2,774,378 2,928,571
Parcel tax assessment revenues 3,735,688 3,702,140
General obligation bond interest (461,276) (521,562)
Interest expense (396,208) (710,443)
Investment income 337,184 305,860
Other income, net 1,293,390 1,119,314
Total nonoperating income, net 7,283,156 6,823,880
Capital contributions 3,720,681 5,517,670
Change in net position 2,154,745 2,729,559
NET POSITION, beginning of year 38,777,557 36,047,998
NET POSITION, end of year $ 40,932,302 $ 38,777,557

See accompanying notes.

16
SVHCD BOD Nov. 2025 pg.75



Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from patients and third parties $ 66,670,497 $ 56,704,089
Cash payments to contractors, vendors, and suppliers (33,699,740) (28,713,512)
Cash payments to employees and benefit programs (33,814,356) (31,133,249)
Net cash used in operating activities (843,599) (3,142,672)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Noncapital grants, contributions, and other 1,293,390 1,073,399
District tax revenues 3,767,282 3,739,667
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 5,060,672 4,813,066
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets (4,401,028) (6,571,603)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - 53,700
Principal payments on notes payable (1,326,116) (992,580)
Principal payments on lease obligations (221,511) (377,544)
Principal payments on subscription obligations (1,155,148) (1,255,672)
Principal payments on bonds payable (2,406,000) (2,277,000)
Interest paid on long-term debt (830,686) (1,232,005)
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable 5,000,000 -
Paydown of line of credit (4,973,734) -
Tax revenue related to general obligation bonds 2,706,363 2,767,767
Capital grants and gifts 3,720,681 5,517,670
Net cash used in capital financing activities (3,887,179) (4,367,267)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments (2,706,363) (2,767,767)
Sale of investments 2,890,575 2,820,826
Investment income 123,637 69,654
Net cash provided by investing activities 307,849 122,713
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 637,743 (2,574,160)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 3,748,581 6,322,741
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 4,386,324 $ 3,748,581

See accompanying notes.
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss from operations
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations to net

cash used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for doubtful accounts

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Patient accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and deposits
Estimated third-party payor settlements
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other operating assets and liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

2025

2024

$ (8,849,092)

$ (9,611,991)

6,166,625 5,267,168
2,135,025 2,547,002
(888,025) (2,209,675)
(20,831) 65,217
(135,110) 523,447
74,347 206,231
(495,735) (149,781)
1,169,197 219,710
$ (843,599) $ (3,142,672)

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Noncash acquisition of capital assets

Noncash acquisition of right-of-use lease assets
Noncash acquisition of lease obligation liabilities
Noncash acquisition of subscription assets
Noncash acquisition of subscription liabilities

See accompanying notes.

$
$
$
$
$

663,417
110,139
(110,139)
353,117
(353,117)

$ 759,545
$ 812,729
$ (812,729)
$ 1,793,223

$ (1,793,223)
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1 — Nature of Operations

Sonoma Valley Health Care District (the District) is a political subdivision of the State of California
organized under the State of California Local Health Care District Law as set forth in the Health and
Safety Code of the State of California. The District is governed by an elected board of directors (the
Board) and is considered the primary government for financial reporting purposes.

The District owns and operates Sonoma Valley Hospital (the Hospital). The Hospital is located in
Sonoma, California, and is licensed for 24 general acute care beds and 27 skilled nursing beds. It also
provides 24-hour basic emergency care, outpatient diagnostic, and therapeutic services. The Hospital
derives a significant portion of its revenues from third-party payors, including Medicare, Medi-Cal, and
commercial insurance organizations.

The Board has approved the planning phase and construction of a new outpatient diagnostic center
(ODC). The construction of the ODC commenced during fiscal year 2020 and is funded entirely by donor
contributions raised by the Sonoma Valley Hospital Foundation. See Note 16 for further discussion.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation

The District's financial statements are presented in accordance with the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The financial statement presentation, required by
GASB Statements No. 34, 37, and 38 provides a full accrual basis, comprehensive, entity-wide
perspective of the District's assets, results of operations, and cash flows. The District follows the
"business-type activities" reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 34. For purposes of
presentation, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of
health care services are reported as operating revenues and expenses.

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for State and Local Governments (GASB 76), which is effective for financial statements for
periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The objective of GASB 76 is to identify, in the context of the
current governmental financial reporting environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The GAAP hierarchy consists of the sources of accounting principles used to prepare
financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework
for selecting those principles. Statement No. 76 reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of
authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that
the accounting treatment for a transaction or other event is not specified within a source of authoritative
GAAP.

Proprietary fund accounting and financial statement presentation
The District utilizes the proprietary fund method of accounting whereby revenues and expenses are

recognized on the accrual basis and the financial statements are prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus.
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Notes to Financial Statements

Net position of the District is comprised of the following three components:

Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets (both restricted and unrestricted), net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those capital assets.

Investments restricted for debt service — consists of net position with limits on their use that are
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants).

Unrestricted net position — consists of the remaining net position that does not meet the definition of
invested in capital assets, and investment restricted for debt service.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include deposits with financial institutions and investments in highly liquid
debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents exclude
amounts whose use is limited by Board designation or by legal restriction.

Patient accounts receivable and concentration of credit risk

Patient accounts receivable consist of amounts owed by various governmental agencies, insurance
companies, and private patients. The District manages its receivables by regularly reviewing the
accounts, providing appropriate reserves for contractual allowances and uncollectible accounts based
upon historical net collections, the aging of individual accounts, as well as current economic and
regulatory conditions. Patient accounts receivable from government agencies represent the only
concentrated group of credit risk for the District, and management does not believe there are any material
credit risks associated with these governmental agencies.

Contracted and other private patient accounts receivable consist of various payors including individuals
involved in diverse activities, subject to differing economic conditions. While the overall concentration of
these other payor receivables is significant, they do not represent any individual concentrated credit risk
to the District. Estimated net receivables from all Medicare and Medi-Cal programs combined account for
approximately 31% and 34% of net patient accounts receivable at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Allowance for uncollectible patient accounts receivable

The District provides care to patients without requiring collateral or other security. Patient charges not
covered by a third-party payor are billed directly to the patient if it is determined that the patient has the
ability to pay. A provision for uncollectible accounts is recognized based on management's estimate of
amounts that ultimately may be uncollectible given historical collection trends. At June 30, 2025 and
2024, the District recorded an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable for amounts due directly
from patients totaling $1,329,024 and $4,353,661, respectively.
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Investments restricted for debt service

Noncurrent investments consist of board-designated and restricted funds set aside by the Board for future
capital improvements and other operational reserves, over, which the Board retains control and may at its
discretion, use for other purposes; assets set aside for qualified capital outlay projects in compliance with
state law and assets restricted by donors or grantors.

Investment income realized gains and losses and unrealized gains and losses on investments are
reflected as nonoperating income or expense.

Fair value measurements

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application (GASB 72), addresses accounting
and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The definition of fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The District reports the fair value of its investments in accordance with GASB 72. This standard requires
an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs (such as quoted prices in active markets), and
minimize the use of unobservable inputs (such as appraisals or other valuation techniques) to determine
fair value. In addition, the District reports certain investments using the net asset value per share as
determined by investment managers under the so called "practical expedient.” The practical expedient
allows net asset value per share to represent fair value for reporting purposes when the criteria for using
this method are met. Fair value measurement standards also require the District to classify these financial
instruments into a three level hierarchy based on the priority of inputs to the valuation technique or in
accordance with net asset value practical expedient rules, which allow for either Level 2 or Level 3
reporting depending on lock-up and notice periods associated with the underlying funds.

Investments measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed in one of the following
categories:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 — Pricing inputs are other than quoted prices in active markets, which are either directly or
indirectly observable as of the reporting date, and fair value is determined through the use of models
or other valuation methodologies.

Level 3 — Pricing inputs are unobservable for the instrument and include situations where there is little,
if any, market activity for the instrument. The inputs into the determination of fair value require
significant management judgment or estimation.

In some instances, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy. In such instances, an instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Market price is affected by a number of factors, including the type of instrument and the characteristics
specific to the instrument, as well as the effects of market, interest, and credit risk.
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Instruments with readily available active quoted prices or for, which fair value can be measured from
actively quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser
degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. It is reasonably possible that change in values of these
instruments will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect amounts reported in
the District's financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of hospital operating supplies and pharmaceuticals and are stated at lower of
cost or market basis, determined by the first-in, first-out method (FIFO).

Investment restricted for debt service

According to the terms of the General Obligation Bond indenture agreements, certain amounts are held
by the bond trustee and paying agent. These funds are restricted for the settlement of bond principal and
interest obligations. A portion of the balance, representing amounts due within the next fiscal year, is
classified as a current investment. The remainder is classified as noncurrent and will be used to settle
obligations beyond one year.

Capital assets
Capital asset acquisitions over $5,000 are capitalized and recorded at cost. Donated property is recorded
at its fair value on the date of donation. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line

method over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the related assets.

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 10 — 20 years
Buildings and improvements 20 — 40 years
Equipment 2—-10 years

Whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recovered, the District, using its best estimates and projections, reviews for impairment the carrying value
of long-lived identifiable assets to be held and used in the future. Any impairment losses identified are
recognized when determined. Recoverability of assets is measured by comparison of the carrying amount
of the asset to the net undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated from the asset. If the
future undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets, the asset's
carrying value is adjusted to fair value. As of June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District has determined that no
capital assets are significantly impaired.

Right-of-use assets

The District has recorded right-of-use lease assets as a result of implementing GASB Statement No. 87,
Leases. The right-of-use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of
the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and
plus ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The right-of-use assets are amortized on
a straight-line basis over the life of the related lease.
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Subscription assets

The District has recorded subscription assets as a result of implementing GASB No. 96, Subscription-
Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITA). The subscription assets are initially measured at
an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related subscription liability plus any contract payments
made to the SBITA vendor at the commencement of the subscription term, capitalizable initial
implementation cost, less any incentive payments received from the SBITA vendor at the commencement
of the subscription term. The subscription assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the subscription term or the useful life of the underlying assets.

Risk management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of damage to and destruction of assets;
business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; employee
health, dental and accidents; and medical malpractice. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for
claims arising from such matters. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of
the three preceding years.

The District maintains professional liability insurance on a claims-made basis, with liability limits of
$15,000,000 per claim and $25,000,000 in aggregate, which is subject to a $5,000 per claim deductible.
Additionally, the District is self-insured for workers' compensation benefits. The District purchases a
workers' compensation excess policy that insures claims with no limits in the amounts and a $500,000
deductible. An actuarial estimate of uninsured losses from workers' compensation claims has been
accrued as a liability in the accompanying financial statements.

Statements of revenues, expenses and change in net position

The District's statements of revenues, expenses, and change in net position distinguishes between
operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues result from exchange
transactions associated with providing health care services, which is the District's principal activity.
Operating expenses are all expenses incurred to provide health care services, other than financing costs.
Other transactions such as property tax revenue, interest expense, investment income, gain on sale of
capital assets, gifts and contributions, and government grants and bequests are reported as nonoperating
income.

Net patient service revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts due from patients,
third-party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated
basis in the period the related services are rendered, and adjusted in future periods as final settlements
are determined.
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The distribution of net patient revenue, which represents both cash collected and expected to be collected
by payor, is as follows:

2025 2024

Medicare 19.7% 23.6%
Medicare HMO 11.3% 10.0%
Medi-Cal 0.4% 1.4%
Medi-Cal Managed Care 30.6% 19.5%
Commercial Insurance 32.8% 36.6%
Workers Compensation 1.8% 21%
Capitated 0.7% 1.0%
Self-pay/Other 0.4% 2.3%
Other Government 2.3% 3.5%

100.0% 100.0%

Charity care

The District provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge
or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the District does not pursue collection of amounts
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue.

Capitation revenues

The Hospital, in association with Meritage Medical Network (formerly Marin Independent Practice
Association) (Meritage) has an agreement with a health maintenance organization (HMO) to provide
medical services to subscribing participants. Under this agreement, the Hospital receives monthly
capitation payments based on the number of each HMO's participants, regardless of the services actually
performed by the Hospital. The Hospital is not responsible for the cost of services provided to subscribing
participants by other hospitals. The Hospital reassesses the profitability of the agreements for exposure
risks in the event future medical costs to provide medical services exceed the related future capitation
payments.

Property tax revenues

Taxes for District operations and for debt service payments related to District General Obligation Bonds
are levied annually on the taxable property within the District.

The purpose of the special parcel tax is to ensure continued local access to emergency room and acute
hospital care and other medical services for residents of the District and for visitors to the area.
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Property tax revenue funds were designated as follows:

2025 2024
Designated for hospital operations $ 3,735,688 $ 3,702,140
Levied for hospital operations and debt service payments 2,774,378 2,928,571

$ 6,510,066 $ 6,630,711

Grants and contributions
The District receives grants as well as contributions from individuals and private organizations.

Revenues from grants and contributions are recognized when all eligibility requirements, including time
requirements are met. Grants and contributions may be restricted for either specific operating purposes or
for capital purposes. Amounts that are unrestricted or that are restricted to a specific operating purpose
are reported as nonoperating income.

Compensated absences

The District adopted GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, during the current fiscal year.
The adoption did not have a material impact on the financial statements. District policies permit
employees to accumulate paid time off benefits, which may be used as paid leave or paid out upon
termination in accordance with policy. The expense and related liability are recognized when benefits are
earned. Compensated absence liabilities are measured using pay rates and related compensation costs,
such as payroll taxes, in effect at the statement of financial position date. The liability is presented in
accrued payroll and related liabilities in the statements of net position. The following is a summary of
changes in compensated absences transactions for the years ended June 30, presented on a net basis:

Beginning Ending

Balance Net Increases Balance Current Portion
2025 $ 1,792,817 $166,268 $ 1,959,085 $ 1,959,085

Beginning Ending

Balance Net Increases Balance Current Portion

2024 $ 1,666,017 $ 126,800 $ 1,792,817 $ 1,792,817

Income taxes

The District operates under the purview of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC), Section 115, and
corresponding California Revenue and Taxation Code provisions. As such, it is not subject to state or
federal taxes on income. However, income from the unrelated business activities of the District may be
subject to income taxes.
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New accounting pronouncements

In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The statement updates the
recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. This statement requires that
liabilities for compensated absences be recognized for (1) leave that has not been used, and (2) leave
that has been used but not yet paid, provided the services have occurred, the leave accumulates, and the
leave is more likely than not to be used for time off or otherwise paid in cash or noncash means. In
estimating the leave that is more likely than not to be used or otherwise paid or settled, a government
should consider relevant factors such as employment policies related to compensated absences and
historical information about the use or payment of compensated absences. The statement amends the
existing requirements to disclose only the net change in the liability instead of the gross additions and
deductions to the liability. The District adopted this standard in the current fiscal year. The adoption did
not result in a material impact to the District’s financial statements.

In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures. The statement
disclosure of concentrations and constraints that make a government vulnerable to the risk of a
substantial financial impact. The adoption of this standard did not result in any additional disclosures or
have any impact on the District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

In May 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model Improvements. This
statement modifies the basic financial statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) to
enhance governmental financial reports. Changes include revisions to MD&A, modifications to proprietary
fund statements, elimination of separate extraordinary and special item presentations, and changes to
budgetary comparison information. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2025. The District is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard on its financial
statements.

In September 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets. This
statement requires separate disclosure of certain capital assets in the notes, such as lease, intangible
right-to-use, and subscription assets, each by major class. It also establishes new disclosure
requirements for capital assets that a government has decided to sell and for which a sale is probable
within one year. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2025, with retroactive
application required upon adoption. The District is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this
standard on its financial statements.

Subsequent events

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the statements of net position date but
before financial statements are available to be issued. The District recognizes in the financial statements
the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the
date of the statements of net position, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing the
financial statements. The District’s financial statements do not recognize subsequent events that provide
evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the statements of net position but arose after
the statements of net position date and before financial statements were issued.

The District has evaluated subsequent events through , 2025, which is the date the financial
statements were issued.
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Note 3 — Affiliation Agreement with UCSF Health

The District has entered into an affiliation agreement with UCSF Health dated August 20, 2018, to share
best practices, increase patient, family, and community satisfaction with patient care and create over time
a comprehensive, sustainable, and integrated health care network to serve the needs of the Sonoma
Community.

The District and UCSF Health have formed a Joint Operations Committee (JOC) that is responsible for
coordinating activities and discussing and negotiating any agreements necessary to support the affiliation
agreement. Effective January 1, 2021, the District and UCSF Health entered into a first amendment of the
affiliation agreement which extended the initial term of the agreement to commence on the effective date
of the first amendment and to end on the fifth anniversary of such date. The first amendment also
redefines the structure and authority of the JOC and adds a management services section whereby
certain executive leadership roles are directly employed by UCSF Health and shall manage the District in
accordance with the term of the affiliation agreement.

Note 4 — Cash Deposits

At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District's cash deposits had carrying amounts of $4,386,324 and
$3,748,581, respectively, and bank balances of $5,260,854 and $3,929,957, respectively.

All of these funds were held in cash deposits, which are collateralized with the California Government
Code (CGC), except for $250,000 per account that is federally insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). Under the provision of the CGC, California banks and savings and loan associations
are required to secure the District’'s deposits by pledging government securities as collateral. The market
value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s deposits. California law also allows
financial institutions to secure the District’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage having a value
of 150% of the District’s deposits. The pledged securities are held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department in the name of the District.

Note 5 — Net Patient Service Revenues

The District has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to the District at amounts
different from its established rates. The difference between the Hospital's established rates and the
amounts paid under third-party contracts are reflected as contractual adjustments.

Medicare and Medi-Cal settlements are estimated and recorded in the financial statements in the year
services are provided, or when amounts are estimable. Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and
Medi-Cal programs are complex and subject to interpretation. The District believes that it is in compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or threatened investigations
involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory inquires have been made,
compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review and interpretation,
as well as significant regulatory action, including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare and
Medi-Cal programs. Changes in Medicare, Medi-Cal, or other programs or the reduction of program
funding could have an adverse impact on future net patient service revenues.
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A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors is as follows:

Medicare - Inpatient acute care services rendered to Medicare program beneficiaries are paid at
prospectively determined rates per discharge. These rates vary according to a patient classification
system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The District's classification of inpatients
under the Medicare program and the appropriateness of their admissions are subject to an independent
review by a peer review organization under contract with the District. Most outpatient services at the
District provided to Medicare beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates per encounter that
vary according to procedures performed. At June 30, 2025, the District's Medicare cost reports have been
audited and final settled by the fiscal intermediary through June 30, 2022.

Medi-Cal — Payments for inpatient acute care services rendered to Medi-Cal program beneficiaries are
reimbursed under a diagnostic-related group (DRG) methodology. Under this methodology, similar to
Medicare, services are paid at prospectively determined rates per discharge according to a patient
classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Inpatient skilled nursing care
services rendered to Medi-Cal program beneficiaries are reimbursed at prospectively determined per
diem rates. Outpatient services rendered to Medi-Cal program beneficiaries are reimbursed based on
prospectively determined fee schedules. At June 30, 2025, the District's Medi-Cal cost reports have been
audited and final settled through June 30, 2022.

Others — Payments for services rendered to other than Medicare and Medi-Cal patients are based on
established rates or agreements with certain commercial insurance companies, health maintenance
organizations, Napa State, and preferred provider organizations, which provide for various discounts from
established rates.

Net patient service revenues consisted of the following:

2025 2024
Services provided to Medicare patients $213,026,266 $ 181,406,838
Services provided to Medi-Cal patients 66,306,588 54,526,061
Services provided to other patients 86,318,790 95,942,535
Gross patient service revenues 365,651,644 331,875,434
Contractual adjustments and implicit price concessions (301,382,013) (276,101,955)
Total net patient service revenue $ 64,269,631 $ 55,773,479
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The District participates in Intergovernmental Transfer (IGT) programs authorized under Assembly Bill
No. 915 related to Medi-Cal services. Under these programs, the District advances funds to the State,
which uses these funds to obtain matching federal funds through Medicaid. The combined funds
reimburse providers, including the District, for eligible Medi-Cal services. For the years ended June 30,
2025 and 2024, the District recognized gross patient service revenues of $14,624,610 and $8,243,787,
respectively, related to Medi-Cal services, and recorded IGT expenses of $5,897,969 and $3,097,493,
respectively, reflecting funds advanced to the State under the Hospital Provider Fee and Rate Range IGT
programs. Revenue and expense under these programs are recognized when the Department of Health
Care Services notifies the District of the final earned amounts for the service year. Patient service
revenues include the gross amount earned from Medi-Cal services, while IGT payments made to the
State are recorded as expenses in other expenses.

Note 6 — Investments Restricted for Debt Service

District investment balances and average maturities were as follows at June 30, 2025:

2025
Fair Value Less than 1 year 1to 5 years

Money market mutual fund $ 5,986,671 $ 5,986,671 $ -

District investment balances and average maturities were as follows at June 30, 2024

Fair Value Less than 1 year 1to 5 years

Money market mutual fund $ 5,957,336 $ 5,957,336 $ -

The investment policy does not specifically address interest rate risk, credit risk, custodial credit risk,
concentration of credit risk, or foreign currency risk.

Inherent rate risk

Inherent rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an

investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value
to changes in market interest. The money market mutual fund has a maturity of less than one year and is
redeemable in full immediately.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. At
June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District's investment in a money market mutual fund was rated AAA by both
Moody's Investors Service and Standard and Poor's.

Concentration of credit risk
This risk relates to the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the District's investment in a single

issuer. For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District had a single money market mutual fund
investment.
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Note 7 — Fair Value Measurements

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the District's assets at fair value as
of June 30, 2025:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Money market mutual fund $ 5,986,671 $ - $ - $ 5,986,671

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the District's assets at fair value as
of June 30, 2024:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value

Money market mutual fund $ 5,957,336 $ - $ - $ 5,957,336

Note 8 — Capital Assets

Capital assets activity as of June 30, 2025, consisted of the following:

Sales,
Balance, Purchases and Transfers, and Balance,
June 30, 2024 Transfers Retirements June 30, 2025
Non-depreciable capital assets
Land $ 646,687 $ - $ - $ 646,687
Construction in progress 5,747,875 4,607,131 (294,749) 10,060,257
Total non-depreciable capital assets 6,394,562 4,607,131 (294,749) 10,706,944
Depreciable capital assets
Land improvements 794,811 - - 794,811
Building and improvements 73,628,808 - 65,255 73,694,063
Equipment 36,183,131 467,648 (29,449) 36,621,330
110,606,750 467,648 35,806 111,110,204
Less accumulated depreciation (60,751,536) (3,827,679) 248,609 (64,330,606)
Total depreciable capital assets 49,855,214 (3,360,031) 284,415 46,779,598
Total capital assets, net $ 56,249,776 $ 1,247,100 $ (10,334)  $ 57,486,542
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Capital assets activity as of June 30, 2024, consisted of the following:

Non-depreciable capital assets

Land

Construction in progress

Total non-depreciable capital assets

Depreciable capital assets

Land improvements

Building and improvements

Equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Total depreciable capital assets

Total capital assets, net

Note 9 — Leases

Sales,

Balance, Purchases and Transfers, and Balance,
June 30, 2023 Transfers Retirements June 30, 2024
$ 646,687 $ - $ - $ 646,687

7,921,177 6,351,113 (8,524,415) 5,747,875
8,567,864 6,351,113 (8,524,415) 6,394,562
794,811 - - 794,811
68,994,876 141,893 4,492,039 73,628,808
33,770,784 785,163 1,627,184 36,183,131
103,560,471 927,056 6,119,223 110,606,750

(60,158,218) (3,044,425) 2,451,107 (60,751,536)

43,402,253 (2,117,369) 8,570,330 49,855,214
$ 51,970,117 $ 4,233,744 $ 45,915 $ 56,249,776

The District is a lessee for noncancellable lease of office space and equipment with lease terms through
2027. There are no residual value guarantees included in the measurement of District’s lease liability nor
recognized as an expense for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. The District does not have any
commitments that were incurred at the commencement of the leases. The District is subject to variable
equipment usage payments that are expensed when incurred. There were no amounts recognized as
variable lease payments as lease expense on the statements of changes of net position for the years
ended June 30, 2025 and 2024. No termination penalties were incurred during the fiscal year.
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The District has the following operating right-of-use lease assets activities as of June 30:

2025 Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Decrease Balance
Building $ 1,977,935 $ - $ (787,417) $ 1,190,518
Equipment 380,730 110,139 (28,961) 461,908
2,358,665 110,139 (816,378) 1,652,426
Less accumulated amortization (859,761) (360,931) 816,378 (404,314)
$ 1,498,904 $ (250,792) $ - $ 1,248,112
2024 Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Decrease Balance
Building $ 1,194,167 $ 783,768 $ - $ 1,977,935
Equipment 351,769 28,961 - 380,730
1,545,936 812,729 - 2,358,665
Less accumulated amortization (512,296) (347,465) - (859,761)
$ 1,033,640 $ 465,264 $ - $ 1,498,904
The District has the following operating lease obligations activities as of June 30:
2025 Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Payments Balance
Buildings $ 1,378,291 $ - $ (172,612) $ 1,205,679
Equipment 121,471 110,139 (48,899) 182,711
$ 1,499,762 $ 110,139 $ (221,511) $ 1,388,390
2024 Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Payments Balance
Buildings $ 858,475 $ 783,768 $ (263,952) $ 1,378,291
Equipment 206,102 28,961 (113,592) 121,471
$ 1,064,577 $ 812,729 $ (377,544) $ 1,499,762

For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District recognized $360,931 and $347,465,
respectively, in amortization expense included in depreciation and amortization expense on the
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
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The future principal and interest lease payments as of June 30, 2025, were as follows:

Principal Interest

Year Ending June 30, Payments Payments Total
2026 $ 263,791 62,967 $ 326,758
2027 260,765 50,290 311,055
2028 218,899 37,664 256,563
2029 197,590 27,759 225,349
2030 214,617 17,493 232,110
Thereafter 232,728 6,351 239,079

$ 1,388,390 202,524 $ 1,590,914

The District evaluated the right-of-use assets for impairment and determined there was no impairment for
the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Note 10 — Subscriptions

The District has the following subscription assets activities as of June 30:

2025 Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Subscription assets $ 7,833,579 $ 353,117 $ (58,207) $ 8,186,696
Less accumulated amortization (3,088,728) (1,978,015) 58,207 (5,066,743)
$ 4,744,851 $ (1,624,898) $ - $ 3,119,953
2024
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance
Subscription assets $ 6,040,356 $ 1,793,223 $ - $ 7,833,579
Less accumulated amortization (1,212,729) (1,875,999) - (3,088,728)
$ 4,827,627 $ (82,776) $ - $ 4,744,851
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The District has the following subscription liability activities as of June 30:

2025 Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Payments Balance

Subscription liabilities $ 3,355,925 $ 353,117 $ (1,155,148) $ 2,553,894

2024 Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Payments Balance

Subscription liabilities $ 2,818,374 $ 1,793,223 $ (1,255,672) $ 3,355,925

For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District recognized $1,978,015 and $1,875,999,
respectively, in amortization expense included in depreciation and amortization expense on the
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

The future subscription payments as of June 30, 2025, were as follows:

Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30, Payments Payments Total
2026 $ 994,461 $ 90,948 $ 1,085,409
2027 663,912 115,757 779,669
2028 576,609 82,446 659,055
2029 318,912 30,208 349,120

$ 2,553,894 $ 319,359 $ 2,873,253

The District evaluated the subscription assets for impairment and determined there was no impairment for
the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Note 11 — Line of Credit

The District had a line of credit with U.S. Bank National Association, which had an outstanding balance of
$4,973,734 at June 30, 2024, and matured on November 28, 2024. This line of credit was fully paid off
during the year ended June 30, 2025.

In October 2025, the District established a new line-of-credit agreement with Summit State Bank with a
maximum available amount of $5,500,000, an interest rate of 9.00%, maturing November 1, 2031. The
line of credit is collateralized by the District’s inventory, chattel paper, accounts, equipment, and general
intangibles. As of June 30, 2025, there was no outstanding balance on this line.

The District is required to comply with certain financial covenants related to these lines of credit.
Management believes all covenants were met or waivers obtained as of June 30, 2025 and 2024.
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Note 12 — Long-Term Debt

The District's long-term debt transactions as of June 30, 2025, consisted of the following:

Balance, Decreases/ Balance,
June 30, 2024 Additions Amortization June 30, 2025
Bonds payable $ 20,453,000 $ - $ (2,406,000) $ 18,047,000
Notes payable 2,366,592 5,000,000 (1,326,116) 6,040,476

$ 22,819,592 $ 5,000,000 $ (3,732,116) $ 24,087,476

The District's long-term debt transactions as of June 30, 2024, consisted of the following:

Balance, Decreases/ Balance,
June 30, 2023 Additions Amortization June 30, 2024
Bonds payable $ 22,730,000 $ - $ (2,277,0000 $ 20,453,000
Notes payable 3,359,172 - (992,580) 2,366,592

$ 26,089,172 $

$ (3,269,580) $ 22,819,592

General obligation bonds payable

In February 2014, the District issued $12,437,000 of additional general obligation bonds (2014 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds), bearing interest at 3.78% and maturing on August 1, 2029. Interest on the
2014 General Obligation Refunding Bonds is payable semi-annually at a fixed rate of 3.78% with principal
payments due annually beginning August 1, 2022 through August 1, 2029. The balance of the 2014
General Obligation Refunding Bonds is $6,567,000 and $7,493,000 as of June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

On August 10, 2021, the District issued $15,825,000 in par value 2021 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds (2021 Bonds) to refund in full the outstanding District General Obligations Bonds, Election of 2008,
Series B (2010). Interest on the 2021 Bonds is payable semi-annually at a fixed rate of 1.79% with
principal payments due annually beginning August 1, 2022 through August 1, 2031. The balance of the
2021 Bonds is $11,480,000 and $12,960,000 as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
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Notes payable

Notes payable are detailed as follows:

2025 2024
California Health Facilities Financing Authority NDPH
Bridge Loans, three loan agreements, 0% interest, due in
fiscal year 2025. Secured by Medi-Cal payments. $ - $ 750,000
California Health Facilities Financing Authority loan dated
April 1, 2023; bearing interest at 2% with a maturity
date of June 15, 2028. Secured by Medi-Cal payments. 1,224,003 1,616,592
California Health Facilities Financing Authority Distressed
Hospital Loan, 0% interest with a maturity date of
July 1, 2030. Secured by Medi-Cal payments. 3,100,000 -
Summit State Bank business loan dated October 30, 2024;
bearing interest at 7.75% with a maturity date of
November 16, 2029. Secured by all Inventory, Chattel Paper,
Accounts, Equipment, and General Intangibles 1,716,473 -
6,040,476 2,366,592
Current portion (1,027,037) (1,142,589)
$ 5,013,439 $ 1,224,003
Debt service requirements
The future maturities of the long-term debt are as follows:
General Obligation Bonds Notes Payable
Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year Ending June 30,
2026 $ 2,561,000 $ 420,446 $ 1,027,037 $ 143,956
2027 2,728,000 351,130 1,463,490 108,262
2028 2,901,000 276,184 1,501,431 70,320
2029 3,091,000 195,173 1,117,747 33,339
2030 3,286,000 107,681 873,364 3,740
Thereafter 3,480,000 62,650 57,407 -
$ 18,047,000 $ 1,413,264 $ 6,040,476 $ 359,617
36
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Interest costs

Interest costs incurred on all outstanding debt during the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, is
summarized as follows:

2025 2024
Interest cost
Paid $ 830,686 $ 1,060,979
Accrued 26,798 171,026
Total interest expense $ 857,484 $ 1,232,005

Note 13 — Employee Benefit Plans
Defined contribution plan

The District contributes to a defined contribution pension plan (the Plan) covering substantially all
employees. Pension expense is recorded for the amount of the District's required contributions,
determined in accordance with the terms of the Plan. The Plan is administered by the Board. The Plan
provides retirement benefits to Plan members and death benefits to beneficiaries of Plan members.
Benefit provisions are contained in the Plan document and are established and can be amended by
action of the District's governing body. The Plan contribution by the District, expressed as a percentage of
covered payroll, was 3.45% for 2025 and 2024.

Deferred compensation plans

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the DC Plan) created in accordance with
IRC Section 457. The DC Plan is available to all employees and permits them to defer a portion of their
salary. An employer match is also provided and is vested at the rate of 16.7% per year.

The District's contributions to both the defined contribution and the deferred compensation plans totaled
$602,541 and $563,825 for 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Note 14 — Medical Malpractice Coverage and Claims

The District has joined together with other providers of health care services to form Beta Healthcare
Group (Beta), a public entity risk pool (the Pool), currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for its members. The District purchases medical malpractice insurance from the Pool
under a claims-made policy. The District pays an annual premium to the Pool for its tort insurance
coverage. The District purchases excess liability insurance through a commercial insurer for amounts in
excess of the coverage provided under Beta. The Pool's governing agreements specifies that the Pool will
be self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial carriers for claims in
excess of stop-loss amounts. The District will accrue any malpractice losses in excess of all policy limits if
they are determined to be estimable and probable of occurrence. As of June 30, 2025 and 2024, the
District has determined that no accrual is required for such losses under the various medical malpractice
policies in place.
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Note 15 — Workers’ Compensation Claims

The District is self-insured for workers' compensation claims of its employees up to $500,000, with
commercial stop-loss insurance coverage purchased for claims in excess of these amounts through
June 30, 2025. A liability is accrued for self-insured workers' compensation claims, including both claims
reported, and claims incurred but not yet reported, of $1,027,000 and $945,000 as of June 30, 2025 and
2024, respectively. The District utilizes an actuary to estimate the ultimate costs to settle such claims.
Estimated future payments related to workers' compensation claims have been discounted at a rate of
1.5% at June 30, 2025 and 2024. It is reasonably possible that the District's estimate could change by a
material amount in the near term. The following is a summary of changes in workers’ compensation
liabilities for the years ended June 30:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
2025 $ 945,000 $ 82,000 $ - $ 1,027,000
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
2024 $ 1,079,260 $ - $ 134,260 $ 945,000

Note 16 — Transactions with Sonoma Valley Hospital Foundation

Sonoma Valley Hospital Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) is authorized by the District to solicit
contributions on behalf of the Hospital. In the absence of donor restrictions, the Foundation has
discretionary control over the amounts, timing, and use of their distributions. The District recorded
contributions from the Foundation of $3,720,681 and $5,517,670, respectively, for the years ended
June 30, 2025 and 2024.

The Foundation is not considered a component unit of the District because the Foundation is not
controlled by the District.

Note 17 — Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation

The District is a defendant in various legal proceedings arising out of the normal conduct of its business.
In the opinion of management and its legal representatives, the District has valid and substantial
defenses, and settlements or awards arising from legal proceedings, if any, will not exceed existing
insurance coverage, nor will they have a material adverse effect on the financial position, results of
operations, or liquidity of the District.
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Regulatory environment

The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments. These laws and regulations include, but are not necessarily limited to, matters such as
licensure, accreditation, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursement for
patient services and Medicare and Medi-Cal fraud and abuse. Recently, government activity has
increased with respect to investigations and allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse
statutes and regulations by health care providers. The District is subject to routine surveys and reviews by
federal, state, and local regulatory authorities.

The District has also received inquiries at times from health care regulatory authorities regarding its
compliance with laws and regulations. Although the District's management is not aware of any violations
of laws and regulations, it has periodically received corrective action requests as a result of completed
and ongoing surveys from applicable regulatory authorities. Management continually works in a timely
manner to implement operational changes and procedures to address all corrective action requests from
regulatory authorities. Breaches of these laws and regulations and noncompliance with survey corrective
action requests could result in expulsion from government health care programs together with the
imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services
previously billed. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review
and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time.

Note 18 — Charity Care

During the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District provided free or discounted care to
underserved individuals unable to pay for medically necessary services, including those uninsured,
underinsured, or ineligible for government programs. Eligibility is determined based on individual financial
circumstances in accordance with the District’s charity care policy. Estimated costs of charity care were
$225,133 and $53,810 for 2025 and 2024, respectively, calculated using a Medicare-based
cost-to-charge ratio applied to eligible service charges. These estimates exclude payments received from
third parties. The District provided charity care to 161 and 71 patient cases during the years ended

June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Supplementary Information Related to Community Support (Unaudited)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Uncompensated care

In September 2004, the District adopted a formal community benefits policy, developed under guidelines
provided by the California Hospital Association, and began to identify those patients who are medically
indigent. The District's policy is to provide service to all who require it, regardless of their ability to pay. As
such, it provides substantial amounts of uncompensated care. When this care is provided to patients who
lack financial resources (and, therefore, are deemed medically indigent), it is classified as community
benefits. When it is provided to patients who have the means to pay but decline to do so, it is classified as
a provision for uncollectible accounts. Neither community benefits nor the provision for uncollectible
accounts is reflected in net patient service revenues.

In addition, the District provides services to other medically indigent patients under certain
government-reimbursed public aid programs. Such programs pay providers amounts that are less than
established charges for the services provided to the recipients and frequently the payments are less than
the cost of rendering the services. Finally, some undetermined portion of the provision for uncollectible
accounts represents care to indigent patients whom the District has been unable to identify.

Uncompensated charges relating to these services are as follows:

2025 2024
Community benefits (charity care) allowances $ 225,133 $ 93,006
State Medi-Cal and other public aid programs 66,306,588 54,526,061
Provision for uncollectible accounts 2,125,000 1,906,299

$ 68,656,721 $ 56,525,366

The District's estimated costs of providing uncompensated care and community benefits to the poor and
the broader community are as follows:

2025 2024
Uncompensated costs of community benefits and
uncollectible accounts $37,582 $ 10,614
Medi-Cal and other public aid programs 7,848,337 6,366,939

$ 7885919 $ 6,377,553

Benefits for the broader community include the unpaid costs of providing service to the elderly, providing
health screenings and other health-related services, training health professionals, educating the
community with various seminars and classes and the costs associated with providing free clinics and
other community service programs.
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Community support
The District recorded the following amounts related to community support as follows:

2025 2024

Capital grants and contributions from Sonoma Valley Hospital
Foundation $ 3,720,681 $ 5,517,670

$ 3,720,681 $ 5,517,670
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To: SVHCD Board of Directors

SONOMA From: Ben Armfield, Chief Financial Officer
VA LL IE Y _|'||__0_S P | T__A L Date: November 6, 2025
L eALINe HERE AT HOE Subject: Summit Bank LOC Renewal

ASK

Management is requesting Finance Committee approval to renew and expand the existing Line of Credit (LOC)
with Summit State Bank, which serves as the District's primary source of short-term working capital liquidity.
This renewal proposal would increase the District’s available credit limit from $5.5 million to $10.5 million.

BACKGROUND AND REASONING

About a year ago, the SVHCD Board of Directors formally approved management to enter into a new banking
relationship, moving away from US Bank (formally Union Bank) and transitioning to Summit State Bank. The
following (which was also included in the Debt Profile Review that was presented to the Finance Committee in
August) summarizes both the nature and rationale for entering into the two loans the District currently has with
Summit Bank.

Line of Credit:

Established in late 2024, this replaced the legacy Union/US Bank line and now serves as the hospital’s primary
source of liquidity for working capital. The line currently carries a loan amount of $5.5 million, with an interest
rate of Prime + 1.5% and matures in 2031. Any draw on the line requires a repayment in 150 days. The line
carries a 7-year maturity (through November 2031) and is subject to annual renewal based on lender review.

Covenants: 1) SVH maintains primary banking relationship with Summit; 2) Zero LOC balance for 30 consecutive
days; 3) Minimum DSCR Ratio (Op. EBITDA) of 1:1; 4) LOC draws to be repaid within 150 days; 5) Minimum Liquidity :
Liquid Assets > $2,000,000 at FYE.

Summit State Bank Term Loan ($1.9M):

As part of the transition away from US Bank, the hospital refinanced the remaining $1.9M balance of the old
LOC into a fixed-rate term loan at 7.75%, maturing in 2029. While this carries a higher fixed interest rate, it
converts a short-term revolving liability into a predictable amortization schedule. This shift reduces refinancing
risk and provides a clearer path to repayment.

RENEWAL TERMS

There are no changes to the existing Summit State bank Term Loan ($1.9M). The only proposed changes with
this renewal relate to the Line of Credit Agreement. We are seeking approval to move forward with this LOC
renewal with Summit Bank, which increases the available line from $5.5 million to $10.5 million. Other changes
in terms from original agreement include:

Credit Limit — (as discussed above) Increases from $5.5 million to $10.5 million

Authorized Signors — Wendy Lee Myatt (SVHCD Board Chair) & Ben Armfield (SVH Interim CEO) added as
authorized signors for the District.

Interest Floor Rate — Increases from 8.0% to 8.25%
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Annual Renewal Fee — Increases from .25% of note to 1.0% of note

The table below summarizes the key terms from the original agreement vs. the proposed amendment:

SUMMIT BANK - LOC LOAN

Summit Bank -

Summit Bank -

Summit Proposal Changes -

TERM COMPARISON Current Terms New Terms Currentvs. New (renewal)
Line of Credit Terms
Loan Amount $ 5,500,000 $ 10,500,000 Loan amountincreased from
’ ’ ’ ’ $5.5M t0 $10.5M
n/a ($3.480M financed and n/a ($3.480M financed and
Guarantor guaranteed through NorCal guaranteed through NorCal No Change
Guaranty Program) Guaranty Program)
Secured/Unsecured Unsecured Unsecured No Change
Collateral n/a n/a No Change
—— ; P—— p
Interest Rate WSJ Prime +1.50% WSJPrime +1.50% Floor rate increased by 0.25%
(Floor=8.0%) (Floor=8.25%)

7 Years (loan renews annually

6 Years Remaining (loan

Term ; renews annually based on No Change
based on meeting covenants) )
meeting covenants)
Prepayment Penalty None None No Change
Loan Fee 0.5% with annual renewal fee of Annual renewal fee of 1% Annualrenewal fee increased from
25% i .25% 10 1.0%
Minimum DSCR 11 11 Minimum DCSR decreased from
1.25Xto 1:1
$1.9M Term Loan | No Changes in Existing Summit Bank Term Loan 105000
Loan Amount $ 1,900,000 $ 1,900,000 | [No Change
n/a ($1.520M financed and n/a ($1.520M financed and
Guarantor guaranteed through NorCal guaranteed through NorCal No Change
Guaranty Program) Guaranty Program)
Structure 5-year separate term loan 5-year separate term loan No Change
Interest Rate 7.75% 7.75% No Change
Minimum DSCR 1:1 1:1 No Change
Other
lef inrenewal are 1%
Total Estimated Fees $ 171,250 | |$ 106,000 | [0\ feesinrenewalare 1%

renewal fee + $1K documentation

Deposit Banking Must transition/stay to Summit Must transition/stay to Summit No Change
LOAN FEE BREAKDOWN

Loan Fee $ 46,500 $ 105,000

NorCal Guarantee Amount $ 118,750 $ -

Documentation Fee $ 5,000 $ 1,000

Documentation Fee -NorCal  $ 1,000 $ -

Total Estimated Fees $ 171,250 $ 106,000

OPERATIONAL IMPACT

The increase from $5.5M to $10.5M provides the District with enhanced liquidity to manage cash flow timing
differences and short-term funding needs, particularly around backfilling operational cash due to supplemental
funding drawdowns and major vendor payments.
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While the annual renewal fee increased to 1%, total closing costs declined from $171,000 to $106,000 due to
the elimination of prior NorCal Guaranty fees that were specific to the setup of the program.

Including this proposed renewal, the District will retain the ability to renew this line up to five additional times
over the remaining term, subject to annual review and compliance with financial covenants.

RECOMMENDATION

Management recommends that the Finance Committee formally recommend to the SVHCD Board of Directors,
the approval of the renewal and expansion of the Summit State Bank Line of Credit as outlined above,
authorizing the CFO/Interim CEO and one Board Officer to execute final loan documents upon completion of
legal review.

ATTACHMENTS

- Summit State Bank / Sonoma Valley Healthcare District Line of Credit — Change in Terms Agreement
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ASSOCIATION RESOLUTION

References in the boxes above are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document to any particular loan or item.
Any item above containing "***" has been omitted due to text length limitations.

Lender: Summit State Bank
Association: Sonoma Valley Health Care District Loan Operations Dept
347 Andrieux Street 500 Bicentennial Way
Sonoma, CA 95476 Santa Rosa, CA 95403

I, THE UNDERSIGNED, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT:

THE ASSOCIATION'S EXISTENCE. The complete and correct name of the Association is Sonoma Valley Health Care District ("Association").
The Association is a non-profit organization which is, and at all times shall be, duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under and
by virtue of the laws of the State of California. The Association is duly authorized to transact business in all other states in which the
Association is doing business, having obtained all necessary filings, governmental licenses and approvals for each state in which the Association
is doing business. Specifically, the Association is, and at all times shall be, duly qualified as a foreign association in all states in which the
failure to so qualify would have a material adverse effect on its business or financial condition. The Association has the full power and authority
to own its properties and to transact the business in which it is presently engaged or presently proposes to engage. The Association maintains
its principal office at 347 Andrieux Street, Sonoma, CA 95476. Unless the Association has designated otherwise in writing, this is the
principal office at which the Association keeps its books and records. The Association will notify Lender prior to any change in the location of
the Association's state of organization or any change in the Association's name. The Association shall do all things necessary to preserve and
to keep in full force and effect its existence, rights and privileges, and shall comply with all regulations, rules, ordinances, statutes, orders and
decrees of any governmental or quasi-governmental authority or court applicable to the Association and the Association's business activities.

RESOLUTIONS ADOPTED. At a meeting of the officers of the Association, duly called and held on October 6, 2025, at which a quorum was
present and voting, or by other duly authorized action in lieu of a meeting, the resolutions set forth in this Resolution were adopted.

OFFICERS. The following named persons are officers of Sonoma Valley Health Care District:

NAMES TITLES AUTHORIZED ACTUAL SIGNATURES
Ben Armfield CFOlInterim CEO Y X

Wendy Lee Myatt Board Director Y X

Dennis Bloch Secretary N

ACTIONS AUTHORIZED. Any two (2) of the authorized persons listed above may enter into any agreements of any nature with Lender, and
those agreements will bind the Association. Specifically, but without limitation, any two (2) of such authorized persons are authorized,
empowered, and directed to do the following for and on behalf of the Association:

Borrow Money. To borrow, as a cosigner or otherwise, from time to time from Lender, on such terms as may be agreed upon between the
Association and Lender, such sum or sums of money as in their judgment should be borrowed, without limitation.

Execute Notes. To execute and deliver to Lender the promissory note or notes, or other evidence of the Association's credit
accommodations, on Lender's forms, at such rates of interest and on such terms as may be agreed upon, evidencing the sums of money so
borrowed or any of the Association's indebtedness to Lender, and also to execute and deliver to Lender one or more renewals, extensions,
modifications, refinancings, consolidations, or substitutions for one or more of the notes, any portion of the notes, or any other evidence of
credit accommodations.

Grant Security. To mortgage, pledge, transfer, endorse, hypothecate, or otherwise encumber and deliver to Lender any property now or
hereafter belonging to the Association or in which the Association now or hereafter may have an interest, including without limitation all of
the Association's real property and all of the Association's personal property (tangible or intangible), as security for the payment of any
loans or credit accommodations so obtained, any promissory notes so executed (including any amendments to or modifications, renewals,
and extensions of such promissory notes), or any other or further indebtedness of the Association to Lender at any time owing, however
the same may be evidenced. Such property may be mortgaged, pledged, transferred, endorsed, hypothecated or encumbered at the time
such loans are obtained or such indebtedness is incurred, or at any other time or times, and may be either in addition to or in lieu of any
property theretofore mortgaged, pledged, transferred, endorsed, hypothecated or encumbered.

Execute Security Documents. To execute and deliver to Lender the forms of mortgage, deed of trust, pledge agreement, hypothecation
agreement, and other security agreements and financing statements which Lender may require and which shall evidence the terms and
conditions under and pursuant to which such liens and encumbrances, or any of them, are given; and also to execute and deliver to Lender
any other written instruments, any chattel paper, or any other collateral, of any kind or nature, which Lender may deem necessary or proper
in connection with or pertaining to the giving of the liens and encumbrances. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any one of the above
authorized persons may execute, deliver, or record financing statements.

Negotiate Items. To draw, endorse, and discount with Lender all drafts, trade acceptances, promissory notes, or other evidences of
indebtedness payable to or belonging to the Association or in which the Association may have an interest, and either to receive cash for the
same or to cause such proceeds to be credited to the Association's account with Lender, or to cause such other disposition of the
proceeds derived therefrom as they may deem advisable.

Further Acts. In the case of lines of credit, to desi itional or, rnate individuals as being authorized to request advances under
such lines, and in all cases, to do and perform suc%%ﬁﬁﬁsﬁ%vﬂ%ﬁ%%,pﬁﬁggy any and all fees and costs, and to execute and deliver
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ASSOCIATION RESOLUTION
Loan No: 3650501202 (Continued) Page 2

such other documents and agreements as the officers may in their discretion deem reasonably necessary or proper in order to carry into
effect the provisions of this Resolution. The following person or persons are authorized, except as provided in this paragraph, to request
advances and authorize payments under the line of credit until Lender receives from the Association, at Lender's address shown above,
written notice of revocation of such authority: Ben Armfield, CFO/Interim CEO of Sonoma Valley Health Care District. All advances subject
to the Advance Restrictions and Repayment Requirements detailed below..

ASSUMED BUSINESS NAMES. The Association has filed or recorded all documents or filings required by law relating to all assumed business
names used by the Association. Excluding the name of the Association, the following is a complete list of all assumed business names under
which the Association does business:

Assumed Business Name Filing Location Date
Sonoma Valley Hospital Not Filed 10-30-2024

NOTICES TO LENDER. The Association will promptly notify Lender in writing at Lender's address shown above (or such other addresses as
Lender may designate from time to time) prior to any (A) change in the Association's name; (B) change in the Association's assumed
business name(s); (C) change in the structure of the Association; (D) change in the authorized signer(s); (E) change in the Association's
principal office address; (F) change in the Association's state of organization; (G) conversion of the Association to a new or different type of
business entity; or (H) change in any other aspect of the Association that directly or indirectly relates to any agreements between the
Association and Lender. No change in the Association's name or state of organization will take effect until after Lender has received notice.

CERTIFICATION CONCERNING OFFICERS AND RESOLUTIONS. The officers named above are duly elected, appointed, or employed by or for the
Association, as the case may be, and occupy the positions set opposite their respective names. This Resolution now stands of record on the
books of the Association, is in full force and effect, and has not been modified or revoked in any manner whatsoever.

CONTINUING VALIDITY. Any and all acts authorized pursuant to this Resolution and performed prior to the passage of this Resolution are
hereby ratified and approved. This Resolution shall be continuing, shall remain in full force and effect and Lender may rely on it until written
notice of its revocation shall have been delivered to and received by Lender at Lender's address shown above (or such addresses as Lender may
designate from time to time). Any such notice shall not affect any of the Association's agreements or commitments in effect at the time notice
is given.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and attest that the signatures set opposite the names listed above are their genuine
signatures.

| have read all the provisions of this Resolution, and | personally and on behalf of the Association certify that all statements and representations
made in this Resolution are true and correct. This Association Resolution is dated October 17, 2025.

CERTIFIED TO AND ATTESTED BY:

X
Dennis Bloch, Secretary of Sonoma Valley Health
Care District

NOTE: If the officers signing this Resolution are designated by the foregoing document as one of the officers authorized to act on the Association's behalf, it is advisable to have this Resolution
signed by at least one non-authorized officer of the Association.

LaserPro, Ver. 25.2.10.002 Copr. Finastra USA Corporation 1997, 2025. All Rights Reserved. - CA c:\CFI\LPL\C20.FC TR-5622 PR-1

SVHCD BOD Nov. 2025 pg.106



*000000003650501202096010172025LNO1*

CHANGE IN TERMS AGREEMENT

References in the boxes above are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document to any particular loan or item.
Any item above containing "***" has been omitted due to text length limitations.

Borrower:  Sonoma Valley Health Care District Lender: Summit State Bank
347 Andrieux Street Loan Operations Dept
Sonoma, CA 95476 500 Bicentennial Way

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Principal Amount: $10,500,000.00 Date of Agreement: October 17, 2025

DESCRIPTION OF EXISTING INDEBTEDNESS.
Promissory Note dated October 30, 2024 in the original principal amount of $5,500,000.00, from Borrower to Lender, together with all
renewals of, extensions of, modifications of, refinancings of, consolidations of, and substitutions for the Promissory Note or Agreement.

DESCRIPTION OF COLLATERAL.
A security interest in certain assets of Borrower described in that certain Commercial Security Agreement dated October 30, 2024, and
executed by Borrower in favor of Lender ("Security Agreement").

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE IN TERMS.
John Hennelly is hereby removed as an authorized signer and is no longer authorized to request advances effective with this Agreement.

Ben Armfield, CFO and Interim CEO, is hereby added as an authorized signer and is authorized to request advances effective with this
Agreement.

Wendy Lee Myatt, Board Director, is hereby added as an authorized signer.
The amount available under the line of credit evidenced by the Note is hereby increased from $5,500,000.00 to $10,500,000.00.

The paragraph below as stated in the original Promissory Note is being deleted in its entirety:

ANNUAL REVIEW. Annually, within sixty (60) days prior to the Note anniversary date, Lender to perform an annual review based on the financial
requirements and covenants detailed in the Exhibit A of the related Business Loan Agreement. Upon completion of a satisfactory review, a fee of
.25% of the Note amount will be due and payable by borrower. In the event the review is not satisfactory, Lender may terminate the line.

And is replaced with:

ANNUAL REVIEW. Annually, within sixty (60) days prior to the Note anniversary date, Lender to perform an annual review based on the financial
requirements and covenants detailed in the Exhibit A of the related Business Loan Agreement. Upon completion of a satisfactory review, a fee of
1.00% of the Note amount will be due and payable by borrower. In the event the review is not satisfactory, Lender may terminate the line.

The paragraph below as stated in the Exhibit A to the related Business Loan Agreement is being deleted in its entirety:

Annually, within sixty (60) days prior to the Note anniversary date, Lender to perform an annual review based on the financial requirements
detailed within this Exhibit A. Upon completion of a satisfactory review, a fee of .25% of the Note amount will be due and payable by borrower.
In the event the review is not satisfactory, Lender may terminate the line.

And is replaced with:

Annually, within sixty (60) days prior to the original Note anniversary date, Lender to perform an annual review based on the financial
requirements detailed within this Exhibit A. Upon completion of a satisfactory review, a fee of 1.00% of the Note amount will be due and
payable by borrower. In the event the review is not satisfactory, Lender may terminate the line.

CONTINUING VALIDITY. Except as expressly changed by this Agreement, the terms of the original obligation or obligations, including all
agreements evidenced or securing the obligation(s), remain unchanged and in full force and effect. Consent by Lender to this Agreement does
not waive Lender's right to strict performance of the obligation(s) as changed, nor obligate Lender to make any future change in terms. Nothing
in this Agreement will constitute a satisfaction of the obligation(s). It is the intention of Lender to retain as liable parties all makers and
endorsers of the original obligation(s), including accommodation parties, unless a party is expressly released by Lender in writing. Any maker or
endorser, including accommodation makers, will not be released by virtue of this Agreement. If any person who signed the original obligation
does not sign this Agreement below, then all persons signing below acknowledge that this Agreement is given conditionally, based on the
representation to Lender that the non-signing party consents to the changes and provisions of this Agreement or otherwise will not be released
by it. This waiver applies not only to any initial extension, modification or release, but also to all such subsequent actions.

NO PROHIBITED ACTIVITIES. Borrower is not engaged in and none of the Collateral is created by or used in connection with any Prohibited
Activities. Borrower shall not make any payments to Lender from funds derived from Prohibited Activities. Borrower agrees to indemnify defend,
and hold harmless Lender against any and all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, penalties, and expenses which Lender may directly or indirectly
sustain or suffer resulting from a breach of this section of the Agreement. Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement or Related
Documents to the contrary, no direct or indirect disclosure to Lender and no knowledge of Lender of the existence of any Prohibited Activities
shall estop Lender or waive any right of Lender to invoke any remedy under the Agreement or any Related Documents for any Prohibited
Activities.
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*000000003650501202096010172025LN02*

CHANGE IN TERMS AGREEMENT
Loan No: 3650501202 (Continued) Page 2

PRIOR TO SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT, BORROWER READ AND UNDERSTOOD ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT. BORROWER
AGREES TO THE TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT.

CHANGE IN TERMS SIGNERS:

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

By: By:
Ben Armfield, CFO/Interim CEO of Sonoma Valley Wendy Lee Myatt, Board Director of Sonoma Valley
Health Care District Health Care District

LaserPro, Ver. 25.2.10.002 Copr. Finastra USA Corporation 1997, 2025. All Rights Reserved. - CA c\CFI\LPL\D20C.FC TR-5622 PR-1
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*000000003650501202034510172025LNO1*

DISBURSEMENT REQUEST AND AUTHORIZATION

References in the boxes above are for Lender's use only and do not limit the applicability of this document to any particular loan or item.
Any item above containing "***" has been omitted due to text length limitations.

Borrower:  Sonoma Valley Health Care District Lender: Summit State Bank
347 Andrieux Street Loan Operations Dept
Sonoma, CA 95476 500 Bicentennial Way

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

LOAN TYPE. This is a Variable Rate Nondisclosable Revolving Line of Credit Loan to an Unincorporated Association for $10,500,000.00 due on
November 1, 2031.

PRIMARY PURPOSE OF LOAN. The primary purpose of this loan is for:
O Personal, Family, or Household Purposes or Personal Investment.

Business (Including Real Estate Investment).

SPECIFIC PURPOSE. The specific purpose of this loan is: Increase limit of Revolving Line of Credit used for working capital.

DISBURSEMENT INSTRUCTIONS. Borrower understands that no loan proceeds will be disbursed until all of Lender's conditions for making the
loan have been satisfied. Please disburse the loan proceeds of $10,500,000.00 as follows:

Other Disbursements: $10,500,000.00
$10,500,000.00 Undisbursed Funds

Note Principal: $10,500,000.00

CHARGES PAID IN CASH. Borrower has paid or will pay in cash as agreed the following charges:

Prepaid Finance Charges Paid in Cash: $0.00

Other Charges Paid in Cash: $106,000.00
$105,000.00 Loan fee to Lender paid by Borrower from
Account# ****62516
$1,000.00 Documentation fee to Lender paid by Borrower from
Account# ****62516

Total Charges Paid in Cash: $106,000.00

AUTOMATIC PAYMENTS. Borrower hereby authorizes Lender automatically to deduct from Borrower's Demand Deposit - Checking account,
numbered 700062516, the amount of any loan payment. If the funds in the account are insufficient to cover any payment, Lender shall not be
obligated to advance funds to cover the payment. At any time and for any reason, Borrower or Lender may voluntarily terminate Automatic
Payments.

FINANCIAL CONDITION. BY SIGNING THIS AUTHORIZATION, BORROWER REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS TO LENDER THAT THE
INFORMATION PROVIDED ABOVE IS TRUE AND CORRECT AND THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE IN BORROWER'S
FINANCIAL CONDITION AS DISCLOSED IN BORROWER'S MOST RECENT FINANCIAL STATEMENT TO LENDER. THIS AUTHORIZATION IS
DATED OCTOBER 17, 2025.

BORROWER:

SONOMA VALLEY HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

By: By:
Ben Armfield, CFO/Interim CEO of Sonoma Valley Wendy Lee Myatt, Board Director of Sonoma Valley
Health Care District Health Care District

LaserPro, Ver. 25.2.10.002 Copr. Finastra USA Corporation 1997, 2025. All Rights Reserved. - CA c:\CFI\LPL\I20.FC TR-5622 PR-1
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\ To: SVHCD Board of Directors
SONOMA From: Ben Armfield, CFO, Interim CEO
VALLEY HOSPITAL Date: November 6, 2025

Jerie veee o Subject: CEO Report

OPERATIONS UPDATE | SEPTEMBER 2025

Much of the financial operations update is covered under the September Finance Report, but
September was yet another positive month for the hospital financially — posting an Operating EBDA of
$362,000 vs. a budget of $206,000.

While inpatient volumes remained somewhat soft, the hospital experienced robust growth across outpatient,
surgical, and emergency services, which more than offset the inpatient shortfall.

Outpatient activity once again served as the primary driver of growth, led by record-breaking MRI volumes, as
the hospital performed over 250 MRI exams in September. This increase is not coincidental - we have been
intentional in expanding MRI marketing and outreach efforts, both within Sonoma Valley and throughout the
broader North Bay region. As part of this effort, our referring physician network continues to grow - we have
now received referrals from more than 30 different UCSF providers, in addition to gains from community-based
providers. The continued expansion of our referral base is a strong indicator that our outreach efforts are
working and that the service is gaining regional traction.

There were other strong gains in procedural areas in September as well, and sustained growth in other ancillary
imaging areas such as CT and Ultrasound. Physical Therapy volumes also continue to stay strong, operating
well above budget and prior year levels.

Overall, we are off to an excellent start to the fiscal year. Through the first quarter, operating revenues
are 11% above budget, while operating expenses are 5% above budget, reflecting disciplined cost
management amid higher volumes.

Cash remains tight, given the time period we are in and the upcoming Rate Range IGT matching fee
pay-in that will happen later this month. Still, even with this pinch (that was anticipated and planned
for) cash collections remain strong and our end of year cash projection continues to improve month
over month.

OTHER UPDATES

Chief Executive Officer Transition — We are very excited to welcome our new Chief Executive Officer,

Kelley Kaiser. We look forward to hitting the ground running with her, and will work diligently on
transitioning her into the CEO role and supporting her as she settles in.

Rate Range IGT - We received the final estimate for this year's Rate Range IGT program, which will deliver
over $12 million in net proceeds to the hospital. This represents an increase of $5 million over last year and
$9 million more than FY2024. The matching fee payment will occur in October.

Seismic - We continue to discuss potential options and strategy as it relates to the hospital’s Seismic
Compliance Plan and associated construction documents. We will be engaging the board shortly on aligning
strategy and go forward plan relating to the upcoming deadlines starting as early as January 2026.
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Capital - Management continues to vet critical capital needs that need to be addressed in this current fiscal
year. We are grateful that the SVH Foundation has agreed to fundraise for the OR Integration System
Replacement, which will be critical to refresh our operating room suites with state-of-the-art equipment.
Upcoming capital needs that will need to get addressed include the finalization of the ODC project
(including the beautification of the space), AC-1 Replacement ($250,000), Telemetry Equipment
Replacement ($700,000), and the replacement of an existing Air Handler that is failing. As those projects
continue to get vetted, management will most likely be bringing recommendations on how to fund these
projects in the coming months.

CAPITAL PROJECT UPDATES

Outpatient Diagnostic Center (ODC)

Nothing new to report specific to the ODC project. We are still working with the city of Sonoma on the
finalization of remaining scope required in order for the hospital to achieve permanent occupancy in its current
location. We plan on bringing a formal proposal to the board upon final City review that includes the scope of
work and additional cost needed to close out this phase of the project.

Upon completion of this phase, this space will achieve permanent occupancy.

There have been no changes in our estimations of total project cost; we still anticipate completing the ODC
project for no more than $24 million.

Physical Therapy Expansion Project

Construction on the PT Expansion project has been completed, and pleased to report that CDPH performed
an on-site survey visit on 10/29 and informed us they will be submitting approval for licensure. We should
receive full occupancy no later than 11/7.

Also pleased to report that we still anticipate finishing the project under the $2.3 million budget by at least
$100,000.

ICU Refresh Project

Happy to report that the ICU Refresh project is now fully complete. All 6 ICU rooms have been operational
since August, and final construction work related to some smoke alarms was completed last month.
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SVH Performance Score Card

ality and Safety 2. Employees

Objective Target AUG25 SEPT25 Supporting detail Objective Target 125 A%fffn Jﬁﬁgespt Supporting Detail
Infection Prevention
Central Line Blood Stream Infection Less than Target is Goal Employed less a year is defined as Short-Term Turnover -|
CLABSI volume <1 0 0 Short-term Turnover <3% _ | method of calculation changed as of 1/1/25
Catheter Associated Urinary Tract . .
Infection- CAUTI volume <1 0 0 Less than Target is Goal Turnover <10% 1.6 557 5.0 Total Turnover Rate (Annual Basis)
CDIFF Infection volume <1 0 0 Less than Target is Goal ‘Workplace Injuries <2V::rer (Qﬁi 1) (QTII.I 2) (Q:i 3)
Surgical Site Infections volume <1 0 0 E:rzl;z:s(zerﬁlyoznl_yess than Target is Goal
Acute Care Falls
; 3. Patient Experience
Patient Fall per 1000 pt days 375 000 | 000 Less than Target s Goal P
Patient fall with injury per 1000 pt days |<3.75 0.00 0.00 Less than Target is Goal Outpatient Ambulatory Services (OASCAHPS)
Objective Target JUL 25 AUG 25 Supporting Detail
Core Measures Recommend Facility >90% 90.9
Sepsis Early Management Bundle % | g, Above Target is Goal Communication >90% 9638 Top Box Scores. % of patients
compliant . choosing "Always"- Above Target is
s s 3 hour Bundie % Discharge Instructions Goal
evere Sepsis our Bundle % .
compliant >94% Above Target is Goal >95% 97.21 97.71
Severe Sepsis 6 hr Bundle % compliant | 100%
. . 5
f:;‘ep?aﬁ’“” Head CT within 45 mins % | 5, Above Target is Goal HCAHPS (Hospital Inpatient)
Objective Target JUL 25 AUG 25 Supporting Detail
Mortality Recommend the hospital >90%
Acute Care Mortality Rate O/E rate ‘ <1 | 0.23 | 0.56 | ‘ ‘ Lower is better Communication with Nurse >90%
Communication with Doctor >90% Top Box Scores. % of patients
choosing "Always" - Above Target is
ED Cleanliness of Hospital >90% Goal
Core OP 18b Median Time ED arrival to . . -
ED Departure mins <132 127.50 | 116.00 Lower is better Communicaton about medicines >90%
Ex;so" 22ED Left without being seen <2% 0.20 0.00 Lower is better Discharge Information >90%
PSI90
PSI 90 Composite Acute Care | | | ‘ ‘ I ) €
Admisslons ‘ 000 | 000 0.00 Lower is better
Objective Target AUG 25 SEPT 25 Supporting Detail
Preventable Harm Patient Visits
Preventable Harm Events Rate % of Complications under review . . .
risk events graded Minor-Major ‘ 0.00 @D ‘ ‘ ‘ Lower is better Emergency Visits >855 Higher than Target is Goal
Surgical Volume Outpatient >140 Higher than Target is Goal
?:yasdzzwsslons to Acute Care within 30 <15.3 333 7.46 Lower is better Surgical Volume Inpatient >13 Higher than Target is Goal
_ Inpatient Discharges >70 Higher than Target is Goal
SONOMA'
\ o FY26 o r
( \ Objective Target | AUG25 SEPT 25 Supporting Detail
f v A L L E Y H 0 S P | T A L Operating EBDA in % (Month)* | varies | 5.0% 5.4% September Operating EBDA Target 3.4%
SONOMA VALLEY \LTH CARE DISTR Operating EBDA in % (YTD) * >52% | 7.8% 7.0%
HEALING WERE AT HOK Days Cash on Hand @ FYE >30 325 34.0
Net Operating Revenue o
(8M) (annualized) $76.7 $80.4 $80.6 Includes Parcel Tax & IGT Revenues
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To: SVHCD Board of Directors

SONOMA From: Ben Armfield, Chief Financial Officer
VALL |E Y HOSP l. TAL Date: November 6%, 2025
LG HERE AT HomE Subject: Financial Report for September 2025

OVERALL PERFORMANCE SUMMARY | MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2025

Operating EBDA (with Parcel Taxes) — September marked another strong operational month, with the
hospital posting a positive Operating EBDA of $362,000, compared to a budgeted $206,000. Although
this represents a modest dip from the prior two months, it remains well above budget and reflects
another solid performance for the hospital.

Operating Revenues — $6.74 million, exceeding budget by 11% or $647,000. September represented
a very strong revenue month for the hospital, continuing the momentum established over the summer.
Gross charges approached $34 million, coming in nearly 20% above budget, underscoring the breadth

of activity across multiple service lines.

While inpatient volumes remained somewhat soft, the hospital experienced robust growth across
outpatient, surgical, and emergency services, which more than offset the inpatient shortfall.
Outpatient activity once again served as the primary driver of growth, led by record-breaking MRI
volumes, strong gains in procedural areas, and sustained growth in ancillary imaging.

Operating Expenses - $6.38 Million, exceeding budget by 8% or $491,000. The increase was largely
attributable to people costs (salaries and benefits), which ran an unusual 15% over budget. The hospital
operated 5% over budgeted FTEs, reflecting necessary staffing increases to support higher-than-
planned volumes, particularly in the Emergency Department. Benefit expenses also spiked due to a
catch-up of medical claims processed through the captive, which added temporary upward pressure to
total costs in September.

Through the first quarter of fiscal year 2026, we are +11% vs. budget in operating revenue, and +5%

vs. budget when looking at operating expenses.

Cash — September was a banner month for cash collections, as the hospital exceeded its monthly goal
($4.3 million) for the third straight month by collecting just under $5 million ($4.9M). Certainly
encouraging as we reached a new level in what we are bringing in every month. While cash collections
remain strong, overall cash on hand continues to trend lower - this is planned and anticipated. This
decline reflects normal seasonality and timing differences prior to the arrival of Rate Range IGT funding
in January. As mentioned, we will manage carefully through this temporary window. January will offer
cash relief, but it will certainly be tight between now and when IGT monies arrive. All of that said, our
cash position remains controlled and consistent with projections.

Overall Performance (In 1000s, Includes Parcel Taxes) | September 2025

Operating Margin
Operating EBDA

Net Income (Loss)

Current Month Year-To- Date
Actual Budget Var % Actual Budget Var % PY Actual Var %
$ (146.6) $ (307.0) $160.4 52% || S (116.3) S (1,068.1) S 951.8 89% || S (889.9) S 773.6 87%
$ 3625 $ 2063 S156.1 76% ||S 1,4043 $ 5219 S 8823 169% || S 7267 S 677.6  93%
$ 80.9 $(151.1) $232.1 154%||S 677.4 S (600.5) $1,277.8 213% || $ (352.1) S 1,029.4 292%
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DRIVERS IN MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Volumes continue to trend upward, particularly across the outpatient setting. While inpatient activity was soft,
growth across other key service areas produced a banner volume month for SVH, reinforcing the strong
operational footing established in recent quarters.

Emergency Room volumes remain an area of growth. 975 visits in September — an average of 32.5 per day.
Through the first quarter of FY26, SVH is averaging over 33 visits per day, which is nearly a 30% increase from
FY23 levels (see table below). That is a remarkable increase and a clear reflection of the positive momentum in
this service line. Notably, since the start of this calendar year, the hospital has met or exceeded the 30-visit-per-
day target every month except March (29.8/day). Both the internal SVH team and our emergency medicine
physician partners deserve great credit for this turnaround. Their focus on quality, service, and patient
experience has helped rebuild community confidence in the exceptional care provided in our ER. We expect
this momentum to continue.

ER Visits / Day| FY2026* | FY2025 | FY 2024 |FY 2023
Visits Per Day 33.3 30.9 28.1 26.4
YoY Chg - FY26 vs. 8% 18% 26%

* Through September 2025

Surgical volumes once again exceeded budget (+15%), continuing the steady upward trend seen throughout
the summer. Orthopedics and Gl remain the leading drivers of case volume, reflecting ongoing strength in
two of our core service lines.

Outpatient activity continued its impressive trajectory, with approximately 6,200 outpatient visits (recorded
excluding ER and outpatient surgery) - 10% above budget. This sustained growth demonstrates the broad
reach of SVH's outpatient programs, the effectiveness of recent expansions (MRI, CT), and opportunities that
exist in programs that are about to expand further - such as Physical Therapy.

MRI volumes set a new all-time high in September, reaching 250 exams. This milestone follows previous
records of 230 in July, briefly interrupted by a temporary dip in August related to staffing shortages.

With September’s rebound, it's clear that SVH has reached a higher sustained plateau of demand in advanced
imaging.

We've been intentional about expanding outreach and marketing efforts, and those investments are paying off.
Referral growth continues not only from Sonoma Valley providers but also from the broader North Bay region -
evidence of SVH's expanding clinical reach and reputation. This growth directly corresponds with an expanding
base of referring providers, including many new sources to SVH. Notably, we have now received MRI referrals
from over 30 different UCSF physicians across the greater Bay Area - a clear sign of SVH's increasing visibility
and trust among regional providers. These results reflect the success of our focused outreach and marketing
efforts, which continue to strengthen our clinical partnerships and expand our footprint beyond Sonoma Valley.
It's encouraging momentum that we expect to continue building upon in the months ahead.

OTHER HOSPITAL UPDATES:

A lot going on at the hospital over the past couple of months. Some key updates to share with the committee:

Chief Executive Officer Search — You probably have heard the news that the District has found a new leader
to lead Sonoma Valley Hospital. We are thrilled to welcome Kelley Kaiser as the hospital's new CEO. Kelley
comes to us with over 25 years of leadership experience across Samaritan Health Services and Plans and Inter-
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Community Health Plans in Corvallis, Oregon. Most recently, she served as Chief Administrative Officer at
Samaritan Health Services, where she led the execution of a system-wide strategic plan and provided
operational leadership across multiple administrative and clinical support areas.

We are very excited to have Kelley join the team here. She plans on starting here at SVH in the first week of
November, so you will all be getting to know her very soon.

Chief Medical Officer - We are also incredibly excited to welcome our new Chief Medical Officer, Dr. Patrick
Okolo. He officially started at SVH on October 6™. Dr. Okolo is joining us from Rochester Regional Health in
New York, where he served as Executive Medical Director and System Chief of Gastroenterology. He will spend
the first six months here as a full-time CMO, and will then transition to a hybrid position, spending half of his
time as the hospital's CMO and the other half operating as a Gl physician in Sonoma Valley out of our 1206(b)
clinic.

Hospital Recognized for Clinical Excellence in Stroke Care - We were informed by the American
Heart Association that Sonoma Valley Hospital was awarded with the 2025 Get With The Guidelines
Stroke Award. This is a national quality achievement award recognizing hospitals for dedication and
commitment to ensuring stroke patients receive the most appropriate treatment according to
nationally recognized, research-based guidelines. We take great pride in this recognition and we are
grateful for all of the work and dedication involved in making this happen.

CAPITAL PROJECT UPDATES:

Outpatient Diagnostic Center (ODC)

We are now in the final phase of the project, which is to pursue permanent occupancy of the MRI trailer in its
current location. This phase will also include necessary sidewalk and driveway improvements. We are currently
working with the City of Sonoma to finalize the remaining scope of work related to the potential
sidewalk/driveway improvements that may need to get addressed prior to achieving permanent occupancy.

We plan on bringing a formal proposal to the board upon final City review that includes the scope of work and
additional cost needed to close out this phase of the project.

Upon completion of this phase, this space will achieve permanent occupancy. Once we have achieved
permanent occupancy, we will then focus on the second and last phase of this project, which is the
'beautification’ of the current space. This work would include any building or land improvements, such as
constructing a canopy with a path from the hospital building to the MRI trailer and any other work to make the
location more functional and appealing.

There have been no changes in our estimations of total project cost; we still anticipate completing the ODC
project for no more than $24 million.

Physical Therapy Expansion Project

Construction on the PT Expansion project was completed a couple of months ago, and the team has spent
the last couple of weeks furnishing finishing touches on the interior of the space.

We have been working with CDPH since August to receive necessary approval and permitting. We are very
happy to report that we finally have a scheduled date for CDPH to come out and perform a licensing survey
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on October 29™. This is the last remaining step in order to going live with the expansion, and if all goes well

and according to plan, we anticipate receiving full occupancy within the first two weeks of November.

This project, which has been 100% funded through philanthropic donations, will finish under the $2.3 million

project budget.

AC-1 Replacement Project

The AC-1 project is now currently being evaluated for potential repair by an alternative vendor, instead of a

full-blown replacement. The original vendor explored fabricating the failed components of the unit through

three different sources but concluded it was not feasible - recommending instead a full bypass with new

equipment. After further internal review it was determined that this solution would indeed require an HCAI

project, and refined cost estimations projected a project cost in excess of $700,000.

In an effort to look at alternative approaches, our project management team engaged a reputable third-party

to review this initial assessment with the hope of getting a second opinion on best path forward.

The newly engaged vendor, who has prior experience with this specific unit, conducted additional research and

confirmed that fabrication of the failed parts is indeed viable. They have provided a repair proposal, which is

currently being reviewed and validated by a third-party mechanical expert. The hospital will look to proceed

with this repair approach, and will bring forward the proposal to both the finance committee and board for

approval once validated. Total costs of this repair are expected to remain within the $250,000 previously

approved by the Board in May.

FINANCE REPORT ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A
Attachment B
Attachment C
Attachment D
Attachment E

Income Statement

Balance Sheet

Cash Flow Forecast

Key Performance Indicators | Volumes & Statistics
Key Performance Indicators | Overall Performance
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT A
Income Statement (in 1000s)
For the Period Ended September 30, 2025

Month Year-To- Date

Revenues CYM Actual CYM Budget Var % YTD Actual YTD Budget Var % PYTD Actual Var %

1 Net Patient Revenue S 4,664.2 S 4,021.4 642.9 16% S 13,9368 S 12,064.1 1,872.8 16% S 12,5013 1,435.5 11%
2 IGT Program Revenue 1,653.7 1,653.7 - 0% 4,961.1 4,961.1 - 0% 2,614.6 2,346.4  90%
3 Parcel Tax Revenue 316.7 316.7 - 0% 950.0 950.0 (0.0) 0% 950.0 (0.0) 0%
4  Other Operating Revenue 103.8 99.9 4.0 4% 297.7 299.6 (2.0) -1% 292.9 4.8 2%
5 Total Revenue S 6,738.4 S 6,091.6 646.8 11% $ 20,1456 $ 18,274.8 1,870.8 10% $ 16,358.8 3,786.7 23%
Operating Expenses CYM Actual CYM Budget Var % YTD Actual YTD Budget Var % PYTD Actual Var %

6  Labor/Total People Cost S 33780 S 2,948.8 429.2 15% S 9,7225 S 8,926.5 796.0 9% S 85111 1,211.3 14%
7  Professional Fees 572.9 634.7 (61.8) -10% 1,887.6 1,963.3 (75.7) -4% 1,968.9 (81.2) -4%
8  Supplies 742.1 668.0 74.1 11% 2,169.1 2,011.2 157.9 8% 1,611.0 558.1 35%
9  Purchased Services 484.9 434.0 50.9 12% 1,300.6 1,252.1 48.5 4% 1,184.5 116.1 10%
10 Depreciation 509.1 513.3 (4.3) -1% 1,520.6 1,590.0 (69.4) -4% 1,616.7 (96.1) -6%
11 Interest 25.4 36.6 (11.2) -31% 100.2 109.7 (9.4) -9% 55.8 444  80%
12 Other 408.0 398.5 9.4 2% 1,267.4 1,196.2 71.2 6% 1,205.2 62.2 5%
13  IGT Program Expense 764.6 764.6 - 0% 2,293.9 2,293.9 - 0% 1,095.6 1,198.3 109%
14 Operating Expenses S 6,885.0 $ 6,398.6 486.4 7.6% $ 20,2619 S 19,342.9 919.0 4.8% $ 17,248.8 3,013.1 17%
15 Operating Margin S (146.6) $ (307.0) $ 1604 52% S (116.3) $ (1,068.1) $ 951.8 89% S (889.9) $ 7736 87%
Non Operating Income CYM Actual CYM Budget Var % YTD Actual YTD Budget Var % PYTD Actual Var %
16 GO Bond Activity, Net 164.7 128.6 36.1 28% 610.2 385.9 2243 58% 478.2 1320 28%
17 Misc Revenue/(Expenses) 62.8 27.2 35,6 131% 183.5 81.7 101.8 125% 59.7 123.8 208%
18 Total Non-Op Income S 2275 S 155.9 71.7 46% S 793.7 S 467.6 326.1 70% S 537.9 255.8 48%
19  Net Income (Loss) S 809 S (151.1) 232.1 154% S 6774 S (600.5) 1,277.8 213% S (352.1) 1,029.4 292%
20 Restricted Foundation Contr. 213.8 125.0 88.8 71% 1,523.2 375.0 1,148.2 306% 1,230.1 293.0 24%
21 Change in Net Position S 294.7 S (26.1) 320.8 1228% S 2,200.5 $ (225.5) 2,426.0 1076% S 878.0 1,322.5 151%
22 Operating EBDA S 3625 S 206.3 156.1 76% $ 1,4043 S 521.9 882.3 169% S 726.7 677.6 93%
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT B
Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2025
Expressed in 1,000s
FYE 2025
Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash S 2,7233 S 2,644.2 S 4,386.3
Net Patient Receivables 7,729.5 7,924.8 7,585.1
Allow Uncollect Accts (1,462.6) (1,233.4) (1,256.1)
Net Accounts Receivable S 6,266.9 S 6,691.4 S 6,329.0
IGT Program Receivable 19,844.3 19,844.3 -
Parcel Tax Receivable 3,800.0 3,800.0 -
GO Bond Tax Receivable 3,344.0 3,344.0 -
Other Receivables 432.4 793.3 951.7
Inventory 942.5 956.4 841.0
Prepaid Expenses 1,329.3 1,519.6 788.1
Total Current Assets S 38,682.8 S 39,593.2 S 13,296.2
Property,Plant & Equip, Net S 61,2005 $ 61,3104 $ 60,342.6
Trustee Funds - GO Bonds 3,469.5 5,986.7 5,986.7
Other Assets - Deferred IGT Expense 7,103.3 7,892.9 -
Total Assets S 110,456.0 S 114,783.1 S 79,625.5
Liabilities & Fund Balances
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 7,827.8 S 7,547.4 S 6,810.4
Accrued Compensation 4,639.2 4,468.0 4,059.9
IGT Program Payable 9,472.1 9,472.1 -
Interest Payable - GO Bonds 34.2 223.3 154.4
Accrued Expenses 261.5 244.2 166.1
Deferred IGT Revenue 14,883.2 16,536.9 -
Deferred Parcel Tax Revenue 2,850.0 3,166.7 -
Deferred GO Bond Tax Revenue 2,395.3 2,596.0 -
Current Maturities-LTD 740.0 740.0 740.0
Line of Credit - Summit Bank - - -
Other Liabilities - - -
Total Current Liabilities S 43,1033 S 44,9945 S 11,930.8
Long Term Debt, net current portion  $ 24,219.8 S 26,9504 S 27,239.3
Total Fund Balance S 43,132.8 S 42,838.1 S 40,455.4
Total Liabilities & Fund Balances S 110,456.0 $ 114,783.1 $ 79,625.5
. Current Month  Prior Month Prior Year FYE
Cash Indicators
Days Cash 17.5 17.0 29.2
A/R Days 41.4 47.0 45.8
A/P Days 75.2 72.5 67.2
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Projected Cash Forecast (In 1000s)

ATTACHMENT C

FY 2026 ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun TOTAL
Hospital Operating Sources
1 Patient Payments Collected $ 46832 $ 42928 $ 49569 $ 43000 $ 44000 $ 42000 $ 4373.0 $ 41000 $ 44000 $ 43000 $ 43000 $ 43570 $ 52,6629
2 Other Revenue - Operating & Non-Op 182.5 104.0 101.6 105.0 105.0 105.0 105.0 105.0 105.0 105.0 105.0 105.0 1,333.2
3 IGT Program Revenue - - - - - 574.2 22,857.6 - 0.9 - - 1,000.1 24,432.8
4 Parcel Tax Revenue 110.9 - - - - 1,800.0 - - - 1,864.1 - - 3,775.0
5 Unrestricted Contributions 4.0 - - - - - - - - - - - 4.0
6 Sub-Total Hospital Sources $ 49806 $ 43968 $ 50585 $ 44050 $ 45050 $ 66792 $ 27,3356 $ 42050 $ 45059 $ 62691 $ 44050 $ 54621 $ 82,207.8
Hospital Uses of Cash
7 Operating Expenses / AP Payments $ 56497 $ 49485 $ 49753 $ 52000 $ 49000 $ 49000 $ 78108 $ 58000 $ 52500 $ 55000 $ 59000 $ 52000 $ 66,034.3
8 Term Loan Paydowns - Summit / CHFFA 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 73.6 882.9
9 IGT Financing Interest - - - - 75.0 90.0 75.0 - - - - - 240.0
10 IGT Matching Fee Payments - 228.5 - - 10,426.1 - - - 293.5 - 87.7 - 11,035.9
11 Capital Expenditures - SVH Funded 145.6 - 1.3 200.0 50.0 144.9 166.7 723.8 344.5 3445 2445 244.5 2,620.3
12 Capital Expenditures - Foundation Funded 876.5 468.8 133.8 245.0 - - - - - - - - 1,724 1
13 Total Hospital Uses $ 67454 $ 57195 $ 51940 $ 57186 $ 155247 $ 52085 $ 81260 $ 65973 $ 59616 $ 59181 $ 6,3058 $ 55181 $ 82,537.5
Net Hospital Sources/Uses of Cash $ (1,764.7) $ (1,322.7) $ (135.5) $ (1,313.6) $ (11,019.7) $ 1,470.8 $ 19,2096 $ (2,392.3) $ (1,455.8) $ 351.0 $ (1,900.8) $ (56.0) $ (329.7)
Non-Hospital Sources
14 Restricted Donations (rec'd from Foundation) 806.7 538.6 214.6 - - - - - - - - - 1,559.9
15 Line of Credit Draw - Summit Bank - - - - 5,400.0 - - - - - - - 5,400.0
16 Line of Credit Draw - New Bank - - - - 5,100.0 - - - - - - - 5,100.0
17 Sub-Total Non-Hospital Sources $ 806.7 $ 5386 $ 2146 $ - $ 10,500.0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $  12,059.9
Non-Hospital Uses of Cash
18 Line of Credit Payoff - US Bank LOC - - - - - - 5,400.0 - - - - - 5,400.0
19 Line of Credit Repayment - New LOC - - - - - - 5,100.0 - - - - - 5,100.0
20 Sub-Total Non-Hospital Uses of Cash $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 10,500.0 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 10,500.0
21 Net Non-Hospital Sources/Uses of Cash $ 806.7 $ 538.6 $ 2146 $ - $ 10,5000 $ - $ (10,500.0) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,559.9
22 Net Sources/Uses $ (958.0) $ (784.1) $ 791 $ (1,313.6) $ (519.7) $ 1,470.8 $ 8,709.6 $ (2,392.3) $ (1,455.8) $ 351.0 $ (1,900.8) $ (56.0) $ 1,230.2
23 Total Cash at beginning of period $ 43863 $ 34283 $ 26442 $ 27233 $ 14098 $ 890.1 $ 23608 $ 11,0704 $ 86781 $ 72223 $§ 75733 $ 56725
24 Total Cash at End of Period $ 34283 $ 26442 $ 27233 $ 1,4098 $ 8901 $ 2,360.8 $ 11,0704 $ 86781 $ 72223 $ 75733 $ 56725 $ 5,616.6
25 Days of Cash on Hand at End of Month 22.0 17.0 17.5 9.0 5.7 151 71.0 55.6 46.3 48.5 36.4 36.0
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District ATTACHMENT D
Key Performance Indicators | Volumes & Statistics
For the Period Ended September 30, 2025

Current Month Year-To- Date
YTD YTD PYTD
Actual Budget Var % Actual Budget Var % Actual Var %
Inpatient Volume
Acute Patient Days 229 251 (22)  -9% 732 755 (23) -3% 644 88 14%
Acute Discharges 58 68 (10) -15% 197 206 (9) -4% 171 26 15%
Average Length of Stay 3.9 3.7 0.3 7% 3.7 3.7 0.1 2% 3.8 (0.0) -1%
Average Daily Census 7.6 8.4 (0.7) -9% 8.0 8.2 (0.2) -3% 7.0 1 14%
Surgical Volume
IP Surgeries 13 9 4 39% 32 28 4 14% 27 5 19%
OP Surgeries 143 128 15 12% 415 384 31 8% 396 19 5%
Total Surgeries 156 137 19 14% 447 412 35 8% 423 24 6%
Other Outpatient Activity
Total Outpatient Visits 6,203 5,660 543 10% 18,245 16,980 1,265 7% 16,887 1,358 8%
Emergency Room Visits 975 875 100 11% 3,067 2,625 442 17% 2,787 280 10%
Payor Mix Actual Budget % Actual Budget %
Medicare 383% 37.9% 0.4% 40.0% 37.9% 2.0%
Medicare Mgd Care 18.9% 21.0% -2.1% 18.4% 21.0% -2.7%
Medi-Cal 16.4% 17.6% -1.2% 16.7% 17.6% -0.8%
Commercial 23.3% 20.7% 2.5% 22.0% 20.7% 1.3%
Other 3.1% 2.7%  0.4% 2.9% 2.7% 0.2%
Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%  100.0%
Payor Mix calculated based on gross revenues
Trended Outpatient Visits by Area Most Recent Six Months YoY Monthly Averages
Department Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25 Aug-25 Sep-25 Last 6 Months FY26 FY25 Chg % Chg
Lab 1,435 1,403 1,392 1,450 1,403 1,481 0 1,445 1,348 96 7%
Medical Imaging 1,082 1,095 1,051 1,087 1,011 999 1,032 982 50 5%
Physical Therapy 1,489 1,485 1,460 1,319 1,465 1,502 ~ 1,429 1,424 5 0%
CT Scanner 478 457 497 508 458 482 -~ S 483 449 33 7%
Occ. Health 318 282 268 198 256 285 v 246 267 (21) -8%
Mammography 300 213 237 233 230 250 v e o 238 245 (7))  -3%
Occ. Therapy 172 210 211 288 208 195 . o 230 203 27 13%
Ultrasound 237 195 220 297 251 2847 e T 265 218 47 22%
Wound Care 234 258 295 285 278 325 296 251 45 18%
MRI 192 197 198 230 178 251 e 220 181 39 21%
ECHO 143 144 148 134 100 114 — T TT— . 116 129 (13) -10%
Speech Therapy 83 72 70 60 59 53 —v——. . . 57 68 (11) -16%
Other 27 19 17 28 28 19 e 25 23 2 8%
TOTAL 6,190 6,030 6,064 6,117 5,925 6,203 T~ 6,082 5,789 293 5%
Emergency Room 966 1,073 985 1,052 1,040 975 ., — T 1,022 868 154 18%
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Sonoma Valley Health Care District
Overall Performace | Key Performance Indicators
For the Period Ended September 30, 2025

Current Month

Actual Budget Var % Actual

ATTACHMENT E

Year-To- Date
Budget Var % PY Actual Var %

Operating Margin
Operating EBDA

Net Income (Loss)

S (146.6) S (307.0) $160.4 52% || S (116.3) S (1,068.1) S 951.8 89% || S (889.9) S 773.6 87%
$ 3625 $ 2063 S$156.1 76% ||S 1,4043 S 5219 S 8823 169% (S 7267 S 6776 93%
S 809 $(151.1) $232.1 154%(l$S 677.4 S (600.5) $1,277.8 213% || S (352.1) S 1,029.4 292%

Operating Revenue Summary (All Numbers in 1000s)

Net Patient Revenue
NPR as a % of Gross

Operating Revenue

5,675 43 11% 7,025 1,87 11% 5 7 5%
$ 6,318 S 5,6 S 643 %|| S 18,898 S 17,025 S 1,873 % || S 15116 S 3,782 25%

18.8% 19.7% -4.6% 18.8% 19.7% -4.1% 17.7% 6.2%

S 6,738 S 6,092 S 647 11% (| S 20,146 $ 18275 S 1,871 10% || $16,358.8 S 3,787 23%

Operating Expense Summary (All Numbers in 1000s)

Operating Expenses
Op Exp. Excl. Depr.

Worked FTEs

$ 6885 S 6399 S 486 8% (|S 20,262 $ 19,343 S 919 5% ||$ 17,249 $ 3,013 17%

$ 6376 S 5885 S 491 8% (| S 18741 $ 17,753 S 988 6% ||$ 15632 S 3,109 20%

243.60 232.15 1145 5% 237.56 23121 $ 635 3% 218.09 19.47 9%

Trended Operating Revenue & Operating Expense Graphs

Trended Operating Revenues
CY Actual vs CY Budget vs PY Actual

Trended Operating Expenses (excl Depreciation)
CY Actual vs CY Budget vs PY Actual

$7.00M
$6.50M .\/.
$6.00M
$5.50M
$5.00M
$4.50M
$4.00M
$3.50M
$3.00M
July Aug Sept
CY ACTUAL $6.53M $6.24M $6.42M

CY BUDGET $5.77M $5.77M $5.77M
PYACTUAL $5.25M $5.21M $4.95M

o-o-0--0-9-°

f..n" A

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

$5.77M $5.77M $5.92M $6.26M $6.08M $6.69M $6.24M $6.55M $6.32M
$5.44M $4.73M $5.12M $5.79M $5.45M $5.93M $6.27M $5.98M $5.62M

$7.00M

$6.50M

= O
ss0om v"._-.‘_‘_-.-.'— - -9

[ 2

$5.50M
$5.00M
$4.50M
$4.00M
$3.50M

$3.00M
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
CY ACTUAL $6.35M $6.02M $6.38M
CYBUDGET $5.84M $6.03M $5.89M $6.14M $6.04M $6.13M $6.25M $6.10M $6.40M $6.23M $6.35M $6.23M
PYACTUAL $5.19M $5.14M $5.31M $5.51M $5.41M $5.42M $5.65M $5.68M $6.29M $6.21M $6.11M $5.73M

Cash Indicators

e CY ACTUAL * ® ® CYBUDGET PY ACTUAL

Current Prior
Month Month Var % Var

Days Cash
A/R Days
A/P Days

17.5 17.0 05 3%
41.4 47.0 (5.6) -12%
75.2 72.5 27 4%
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SVHCD Quality Committee Work Plan 2026

¢ Pharmacy QA/PI - Chris Kutza
(postponed from 12/2025)

e Patient Care Services
Dashboard 4th Qtr (2025)

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

e Surgical Servies QA/PI

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

e Annual Quality Department
Review

® Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

¢ Infection Prevention Annual Risk
Assessment / Plan -

¢ Patient Care Services
Dashboard 1st Qtr (2026)

® Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

MAY 5/27

e Lab QA/P

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

JUNE 6/24

e ED QA/PI

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

JULY

No meeting

AUGUST 8/26

e Inpatient Services QA/PI

e Patient Care Services
Dashboard 2nd Qtr (2026)

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

SEPTEMBER 9/30*

¢ Imaging QA/PI

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

OCTOBER 10/28

¢ PT/OT QA/PI

e Patient Care Services
Dashboard 3rd Qtr (2026)

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

No meeting

NOVEMBER & DECEMBER combined 12/09

¢ Pharmacy QA/PI

e Quality Indicator Performance
and Plan

e Policies and Procedures

e Credentialing

*please note these meetings are the 5th Wednesday of the month
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